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Principal activilies and business review

The company Is tha holding company of a group which manages and
operates its own and others’ electricity distribution, water ana wastewater
assets; manages customers for its own and other businesses; and provides
voice, basic and advanced communication services to the business
customer market. The principal subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures
are listed in note 13 to the accounts.

The chairman's statement, the chief executive’s review and the pperational,
corporate respensibility and financial reviews on pages 2 to 27 report on the
group’s activities during the year and on likely fulure developments.

The dividend for shareholders

The directors are recommending a final dividend of 31.7 pence for each
crdinary share for the year ended 31 March 2002, making a total for the year
of 47.0 pence. Subject to shareholders approving this recommendation at
the annual general meeting, the dividend will ke paid on 1 October 2002 to
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 7 June 2002.

The business for the annual general mesting

Details of the resolutions to be proposed at the 2002 annual general meeting
are set out In the notice calling the meeting. There is also a full explanation of
the resolutions in the leaflet cantaining the notice, enclosed with this report.

People - key contributors to corporate success

The group’s employees are key te achieving the business strategy and
enhancing shareholder value. The group is making special efforts to recruit
new employees from ethnic minority communities and is seeking more
applications from people with disabilities, A review of key employee and
safety issues arising in the year is contained within the corporate
responsibility review on pages 20 to 23,

Proper attention to health and safety is an indispensable part of the group's
commitment to high standards in every aspect of its business.

The group is committed to improving its employees’ skills. Through training
and development and nurturing a culture in which they feal valued, the group
encourages them to work 1o their full potential. The group respects the
dignity and rights of every employee, supports them in performing various
roles in society, and challenges prejudice and stereotyping. The group

is egually committed to involving them through open and regular
communications about business developments and Issues of general
interest, both formally and informally.

Owning shares in the company is an important way of strengthening
employees’ invelvement in the development of the business and of bringing
together their and sharehclders' interests. The group encouragss and helps
employees to participate in its share schemes although it accepts its
responsibility to provide financial education to employees and, in particular,
to make employees aware of the risk involved in building up & large stake in
a single stock. Accordingly, the company makes available a multi-stock
United Utilities 1SA for employees who wish to invest in a more diverse
partfolio and facilitates access for employees to independent financial
advisors, The success of these initiatives was recogrised with ProShare
Awards in December 2001 for Best Use of Innovation in an Employee Share
Plan and Best Financial Education Programme for Employees.
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Fulfilling sccial and environmental responsibilities

As described in the corporate responsibility review on pages 20 to 23, the
group seeks ta manage its total impact on society as a responsible corporate
citizen. Full details are set out in the company’s separate social and
snvirenmental impact report, which is an important part of the company’s
integrated approach to reporting on the group's overall performance,
together with the annual report, the annual review and the web site.

Charitable donations by the group in the year amounted to £755,392
(2001 - £806,6897). The group does not make any contributions for political
purposes. It manages its interests in public policy in the knowledge that it
needs to be, and be seen to be, open and accountable,

Approach to technology development

The group is committed to use innovative, cost-gffective and practical
solutions for providing high quality services. It aiso continues to make full
use of the wide-ranging expertise, abilities and facllities within the group. It
recognises the importance of ensuring that it properly focuses its iInvestment
in the development of technology, that it has the right skills to apply
technelogy to achieve sustainable competitive advantage, and that it
centinues to be alert to emerging technological opportunities.

The directors

The names of the present directors and their biographical details are given on
pages 28 and 29. Details of directors’ interests in the company's shares and
further information about those directers who are seeking re-election at the
annual generai meeting are in the report on remuneraticn on pages 34 to 39.

Substantial shareholdings in the company
At 31 May 2002, the directors were not aware of any notifiable interests in
the company’s issued ordinary share capital.

Creditor payment policy and practice

The group does nat follow any specific external code or standard on
payment practice. its policy is normally to pay suppliers according to terms
of business agreed with them ¢n entering into binding contracts and to keep
to the payment terms providing the relevant gocds or services have been
supplied in accordance with the contracts. The group and the company had
67 days {2001: 43 days) and 38 days (2001: 36 days} respectively of
purchases outstanding at the end of the financial year,

The auditor
The directors will propose a resolution at the annual general meeting
re-appointing KPMG Audit Plc as auditor to the company.

Signed on behalf of the board of directg)
Tim Rayner Secretary " 7
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The Combined Code

The board is committed 1o high standards of corporate governance.
Throughout the year to 31 March 2002, the company has been in
compliance with the provisions set out in Section 1 of 'The Combined Code
Principles of Good Governance anc Code of Best Practice’ issued by the
Financial Services Authority. This statement together with the rermuneration
report on pages 34 1o 39 describes the way in which these principles of
governance are applied within the company.

The board
The board is scheduled to meet ten times each year with additional meetings
called if required.

The board has a formal schadule of matters reserved 10 I, which ensures
that it takes all major strategy, policy and investment dagcisions affecting

the group. In particular it is responsible tor business planning and risk
rmanagerment and for the development of group policies including such arsas
as health and salety, and on social, environmental and ethical issues.

The board has adapted policies governing the rights of directors to obtain
independent professional advice. The board also has access to the services
of the company secretary who Is respensible to the board for ensuring that
board procedures are followed and that applicable rules and regulations are
complied with. The appointment or removal of the company secretary is a
matter reserved for the decision of the board.

The board has established a governance framewark which encourages all
directors to bring an independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy,
performance, resources, including key appointments, and standards of
conduct.

Suitable training is made available to all directors upon first agpointment and
subsequently as necessary.

Delegating and working through commitices

The directors of subsidiary companies are responsible at law for those
business entities. They are tasked with the delivery of the targets set within
the budgets approved by the group board and for the implementation of
group strategy and policy across thelr businesses. United Utilities Water PLC,
far example, is a sizeable business in its own right and its board includes two
independant non-executive directors (Phillida Entwistle and Deborah Morton),
The group’s governance structure ensures that all decisions are made by the
most appropriate people in such a way that the degision-making process
itself does not unnecessarily delay progress.

The board has formally delegated specific responsibiliies to board
committees, Including the audit, remuneration, approvals, nomination and
freasury committees.

The roles of the audit and remuneration committees are described on pagas
33, 34 and 35.

The approvals committee considers and approves expenditure and
Investment proposals within mits delegated by the board. Its members are
the executive directors, the group strategic planning director and the
company secretary.

The nomination committee meets on an ad-hoc basis and considers and
makes recommeandations to the board on the composition, balance and
membership of the board. Its members are the non-executive directors,
including the chairman {whe is chairman of the committes) together with
the chief executive.

The treasury committee considers and approves borrowing, leasing, bonding
and other banking facilities within Imits set by the board, Its members are the
chairman, the chief executive, the group finance directer and one of the other
executive directors together with, for mare significant ar complex
transactions, one other non-executive director.

Chairman and CEQ

Separate individuals have been appointed to the positions of chalrman and
of chief executive. The board has agreed clearly defined responsibifities for
the roles and has adopted a set of guiding principles to govern the
relationship between them. The chairman is primarily responsible for the
waorking of the board. The chief executive is responsible for running the
business and for implementing board strategy and policy.

Senior independent director

Sir Pater Middleton has been appointed as senior independent director, The
terms of reference of the senior independent cirector state that his primary
duty is to ensure that the views of each non-executive director are given due
consideration. Other duties of the post include authority to call a meeting of
the non-executive directors and to conduct pericdic performance appraisals
of the chairman.

Board balance

The board aims to maintain a balance of executive and non-executive
directors. The directors have a wide and diverse range of business
experience and expertise as their biographies on pages 28 and 29
demonstrate, There are presently four executive and six non-executive
directors. All non-executive directors are independent and free from any
pusiness or ather relationship that couid compromise their indapancdent
judgement,

Supply of information

The quality of the contribution that directors, particularly non-executives,
can make is directly dependent on the quality of the information they receive.
Accordingly, all directors recelve comprehensive information on a regular
basis. Board papers are normally distributed a week in advance of the
relevant meeting to allow sufficient time for directors to be fully briefed. The
papers are sufficiently detailed to enable the directors to obtain a thorough
grasp of the management and financial performance of the company ang
the operating busingsses. Minutes of committee meetings are circulated to
all board members.

Appointments to the board

The board initially appoinis all new directors, having first considered
recommendations made to it by the nomination committee. Following such
appointment, the director is required to retire and seek election at the next
annual general meeting. There is a process of rotation that ensures that
approximately ons-third of all directors are required 1o retire and seek
re-glection at each annual general meeting, and that no director serves for
more than three years without being proposed for re-glection at an annual
general meeting.
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Sharehoclders

Pubfications and the web

The interim report, the annual report and the annual review remain the
primary means the board has of communicating during the year with all the
company's shareholders. However, the board recognises the growing
importance of the internet as a means of communicating widely, quickly and
cost-effectively. A library of information about the company is available 24
hours-a-day, world-wide at www.unitedutilties.com. Financial news releases
are made available on the site contemporaneously with release through other
news channels and anyone with an e-mail address can register free of
charge to receive an e-mail alert upon the posting of each new release.

Institutional shareholders

There is a planned, on-going programme of investor meetings and
presentations which take place throughout the year, both in the UK and
overgseas. During the year, representatives of the board met with 101
different funds, representing 52 per cent of the company's issued share
capital. This, together with regular anncuncements of significant events
affecting the groupr and frequent updates on current trading, emphasises our
commitment to keep our equity and debt investors informed of developments
affecting the group. The board regards this programme as important to
improve investors' awareness of the business and for the board to gain an
understanding of investors’ pricrities.

The annual general meeting

The beard encourages shareholders to exercise their right to vote at

the annual general mesting. The notice calling the meeting is sent to
shareholders at least 20 working days before the meeting and separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantially separate issue. Presentations
are made on the progress and performance of the business prior to the
formal business of the meeting. Shareholders are encouraged to participate
through a question and answer session and individual directors or, where
appropriate, the chairman of the relevant committee, respond to those
guestions directly. The chairman discloses to the meeting the number of
proxy votes received for and against each resolution following the show of
hands on that resolution. Sharehclders have the opportunity to talk informally
to the directors before and after the fermal proceedings.

Accountability and audit

Statement of directors’ responsibilities for the accounts

The directors are respoensible for preparing, in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985, financial statements for each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the company's and the group’s state of affairs as at
the end of the financial year, and of the profit or loss and cash flows for the
financial year,

The directcrs consider that, in preparing the financial statements, the
group has used appropriate accounting policies, consistently applied and
supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. All
acceunting standards have been followed, subject to any departure and
explanation described in the notes to the accounts.

The directors have a legal responsibility for ensuring that the company keeps
accounting records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time,
the company's financial position and which enable them to ensure the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. Ths directors also
have & general legal responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably
open to them to safeguard the group’s assets and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

The external auditor's statement about its reporting responsibilities is set out
on page 41.
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Financial reporting and going concern

In presenting the annual and interim financial statements and similar
significant publications, the directors aim to present a balanced and
understandable assessment of the company's position and prospects. The
directors have adopted the going concern basis in preparing these financial
statements. This is based upon a review ¢f the group's budget for 2002/03,
the five-year business plan and investment prograrmme, together with the
available cash and committed borrowing facilities available to the group. The
board also took into account contingant fiabilities and other risk factors as
interpreted by the 'Guidance on Gaing Concern and Financial Reporting for
Directors of Listed Companies registered in the United Kingdom', published
in November 1994.

Internal control system - evaluating and managing risk

The board is responsible for the group’s internal contro! framework and for
raviewing its effectivenass. Throughout the year under review and up o the
dats of this report, the board has operated procedures meeting the
requirements of the Combined Codle relating to internal control as set out
in the September 1999 guidance ‘Internal Control Guidance for Directors
an the Combined Code' produced by the Institute of Charered Accountants
in England and Wales. Each year the board reviews all contrals, including
financial, operational and compliance contrels and risk management
procedures. The internal control system is designed to manage, rather than
to eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve the company’s business ohjectives
and can only providé reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against
material misstaterment or Joss,

The key features of the internal control system are:

- A control environment with clearly defined crganisation structures
operating within a framework of policies and procedures covering every
aspect of the business;

- Comprehensive business planning and financial reporting procedures
including the annual preparation of detafled operational budgets for the
year ahead and projections for subsequent years;

- A monthly board raview of key performance indicators to assess
progress towards abjectives;

- Monthly meetings prior to ¢ach board meeling of the group executive
committee, a forum in which the executive directers, the managing
directors of the group’s businesses, the group functicnal directors and
the company secrélary exchange information and discuss strategic and
operational issues which are of group-wide imporiance;

— Regular monitoring of risks and control systems throughout the year by
the operating businesses;

— A self-cerification process, subject to both internal and external audit,
whereby the operating businesses are required to confirm that the
system of internal control is cperating effectively;

- Astrong internal audit function to provide independent scrutiny of internal
control systems and risk management procedures;

— A quarterty risk management forum chaired by the group finance director,
and comprising the company secretary, the group internal audit manager
and senior representatives from gach of the operating businesses, to
scrutinise key risks in depth;




A quartsrly sustainable development forum chaired by the chief
exacutive, and comprising the managing directors of United Utilities
Service Delivery and United Utilities Cantract Solutions, the head of
environment and the community and three external professional
specialists, Walter Menzies, Clive Jeanes and Cr Mark Everard. The
role of the forum is to advise on environmental policy and, in particular,
to identify risks to the environment, recommend targets, and monitor
performance against those targets;

An annual risk assessment exercise involving self-assessment by
management of all business risks in terms of impact, fkelihood and
cantral strength and an objective challenge of that assessment by the
internal audit teamn;

An annual health and safety performance review carried out by our
in-house safety professionals in addition 1o the normal health and safety
risk assessment and management processes carried on within each of
the operating businasses;

Centralised treasury operations operating within defined limits and
subject to regular repariing requirements and audit reviews; and

Established procedures for planning, approving and rmonitoring major
capital expenditure, major projects and the development of new
business which includes short and iong term budgets, risk evaluation,
detailed appraisal and review procedures, defined authority levels and
post-investment performance reviews,

The audit committee and the auditor

The audit committee has written termsa of reference which clearly set out its
authority and duties. The members of the committee are the non-executive
directors, including the chairman, &l of whom are independent. Norman
Broadhurst is its chairman. The committee met four timas in the year to

31 March 2002.

The audit committee reviews the internal and external audit activities,
moniters compliance with statutory requirements for financial reporting
and reviews the half-year and annual financial statements before they are
submitted to the board for approval. It also keeps under review the
sffectivenass of the group’s internal control systems (including financial,
operational and compliance contrels and risk management procedures).
It considers reports from the internal and external auditors and from
management and reports and makes recommendations to the board.

Tha audit committee also keeps under review the scope and results of the
external audlit, its cost effectiveness, the independence and objectivity of the
auditor and tha nature and extent of non-audit services supplied to the group
by the axternal auditor, seeking to balance the maintenance of abjectivity and
value for money. In the year under review the fee for non-audit work was
£647,000 (2001 - £746,000) which comprised £611,000 (2001 — £696,000)
primarily relating to due diigence and regulatory work and £36,000

(2001 - £50,000) relating to the filing of the F3 registration statemant in

the USA.

All non-statutory audit or non-tax compliance services provided by the
auditor must ba reported to the audit committee and prior approval is
required from the chairman of the audit committee for any such prolects likely
1o incur fees in excess of £250,000. In granting such approval, the chairman
of the audit committee is required to consider the cumulative propartion of
tees paid for such work compared with the statutory audit fees.

In May 2002, the board sstablished a committee, consisting of the chairman,
chief executive, group finance director and the chairman of the audit
committee, to conduct a formal audit tender pracess. The process has been
initiated as a matter of good governance and to ensure that the company
continues te receive best value for its audit services.
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Reward philosophy
To ensure corporate success and enhance shareholder value, the group
needs people of the right calibre able to meet and beat the challenges it
faces. The group must ensure its remuneration arrangements attract and
keep the right people.

The group's overall policy aims are to:
- attract, develop, motivate and keep talented people at all levels;

- pay competitive salaries and benefits to all its people. When pay levels
arg set, account is taken of the work an employee does, what is paid in
other companias for that work and how well the group's businesses are
performing;

- encourage its people to hold shares in the company, which the board
belisves iz an effective way of bringing togsther their interests with those
of shargholders; and

— focus remuneration arrangements to help each business in the group
mest its specific challenges.

The board befieves that share ownership is an eflective way of bringing
together the interests of employees and shareholders. The company
promotes greater ownership of its shares by offering employees the
opportunity to build up a sharehelding through share option schemes.
The company was proud to receive awards from ProShare in December
2001 for Best Use of Innovation in an Employee Share Plan and Best
Financial Education Programme for Employees.

The company expects executive directors and other senior executives to
acquire and hold shares at least to the valus of their annual salary. To assist
them in satisfying this minimum share ownership target, it may pay incentive
awards partly or wholly in shares.

Non-executive directors

Non-executive directors are appointed for an inltial pericd of three years,
which may be renewed for further three-year terms thereafter. However,
as with all directors, they are subject to re-glaction at an annual general
meeting at least every three years. They do not have contracts of service
and, in the event of early termination for whatever reasaon, they are not
entitied to compensation, They may hot participate in the performance share
plan, the annual bonus arrangement, the pension schame, the healthcare
arrangements, the company share option scheme 1999, or the employee
ShareSave scheme. The company repays the reasonable expenses they incur
in carnying out their duties as directors.

A committee of the board comprising the chief executive and the other
non-exgcutive directors decides the chairman’s remuneration. A committee
of the board comprising the chairman and the executive directors decides

the other non-executive directors' remuneration. Both committees take
independent advice.

The annual fee paid to non-executive directors is £30,000. Appropriate
amounts are paid for additional and special responsibilties. The chairmen of
the audit and remuneration committees receive an additional £5,000 each
year. A payment of £150,000 is made each year to BAE SYSTEMS plc in
respect of Sir Richard Evans' duties as nan-executive chairman. Sir Peter
Middleton receives an additional £20,000 each year for His responsibilities as
deputy chairman and Jane Newsll receives an additional £15,000 each year
for her responsibilities as chaiman of the company'’s major pension schemes.
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Non-executive directors’ remuneration for the year to 31 March 2002 is set
out in the foliowing tabile:

Total Fees

2002 2001

£'000 £:000

SirRichard Bvans _ 1800 675

Norman Broadhurst 3.0 350

Sir Peter Middleton SRR 500 1500

Jam?”l}lgwell 45,0 45.0

Andrew Pinder 175 -

John Seed 35.0 35.0

Totals 362.5 332.65
Notes

* Andrew Finder became a director on 1 September 2001

Executive directors

Reward palicy

The board’s policy for executive directors’ and senior executives’
remuneration is to:

— pay a basic salary which competes with other companias of about the
same size and complexity, The company aims to pay about the market
median but may pay more for an outstanding performer or to attract
executives of the right calibre;

- giva executives the opportunity to increase their earnings by meeting and
outperforming key short-term and long-term measures. In this way, the
company links executives’ rewards directly to the group's performance
and shareholders’ interests;

~ encourage executives to hold shares in the company; and

- overall, reward executives fairly and responsibly for their contribution to
the group’s short and long-term performance and avoid paying more
than is nscessary for achieving this objective.

The remuneration commitiee

The remuneration committee makes recommendations to the board on the
group's framework of executive remuneration and its cost. The committee
approves, on the board's behalf, the general recruitment terms, remuneration
benefits, employment conditions and severance terms for executive
management. It decides the specific recruitment terms, remuneration
benefits, empioyment conditions, pension rights, compensation payments
and severance terms for the executive directors and for other senior
executives. The committee met six times in the yaar to 31 March 2002.

Inits work, the committee considers fully the principtes of good governance
and the code of best praclice. During the year, it took professional advice
from within and cutside the company, principally from Morks Partnarship,
Willlam M Mercer and Addleshaw, Booth & Co. The board accepted the
committea’s recommendations without amendment. The chairman of the
board ensures the company talks to its major shareholders about matters
to do with remuneration.

The committee’s members are Norman Broadhurst, Sir Richard Evans,
Sir Peter Midcleten, Jane Newel,, Andrew Pinder and John Sgad (who is the
committee’s chairman). Sir Richard Evans was appointed as an additional
committee member an 29 January 2002. They are all independent non-
executive directors. Thay have no personal financlal interest in the company




other than as shareholders and the fees paid to them as non-executive
directors. They have no conflicts of interast arising from <ross directorships
and are not invclved in the day-to-day running of the group’s businesses.

Although not a member of the committee, the chief executive may attend
meetings and the committeg consults him on proposals relating to the
remunaration of tha other executive directors and appropriate senior
exgcutives. He does not attend when the committee discusses matters
relating to his own remuneration.

Efements of remuneration

In deciding the executive directors’ total remuneration package and individual
elements of it, the remuneration committee assesses where the company
should be positioned relative to other companies. it makes appropriate
comparisons but treats them with caution.

The committee aims for an appropriate balance between fixed basic pay
and benefits and variable short and long-term rewards. The incentive plan
introduced in 1996 linked a large part of executive directors’ remuneration
to the group’s and each individual's performance. It brought together the
short and long-term interests of sharsholders and sxecutives. New
incentive arrangements {the performance share plan and annual bonus
arrangements) were introduced from 1 April 2000 to meet the challenges the
group now faces. They strengthen the link between shareholders' and
executive directors' interasts. Variable or ai risk pay represents almost sixty
per cent of executive directors’ total remuneration.

The main elements of directors’ remuneration are illustrated in the table
below:

A g C [}

Long-term incentives

Total emolurments for for performance

Gross salary Annual bonus Other benelits executive directors periods ended

2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £1000 £000

John Roberts 3667 3117 2101 1683 218 1344 5986 6144 - -

SimonBatey . 2717 2800 1556 1404 187 1408 4440 5412 - -

Les Dawson 208.8 833 1196 450 500 392 3784 1675 - -

Gordon Waters 198.8 180.8 113.9 97.6 18.3 19.3 331.0 207.7 - -

Totals 1046.0 835.8 599.2 451.3 106.8 3337 1,752.0 11,6208 - -
Notes

+ 50 par cant of the value of the annual bonus shown abova far 2001 was awarded
as conditional shares in the company to be held in trust for three years under the
deferred shars plan.

= John Roberts was the highest paid director in the year ended 31 March 2002,

A  Salary

The committee reviews salaries each year taking account of group and
personal performance. Any changes are made with effect from 1 September.
The committee commissions independent assessments of market rates
based on the practice of other utility companies and companies of a similar
size and complexity. The committee also takes account of the levels of pay
awards elsewhare in the group.

Following its annual review in 2001, the committee agreed the following
changes 1o the annual salaries of executive directors:

1 Sept 2001 1 Sept 2000

£'000 £7000

John Roberts 400.0 320.0
SmonBatey .. 2800 2600
Les Dawson 215.0 -
Gordon Waters 210.0 183.0

Notes
+«  Les Dawson was appointad on 1 November 2000 at an annual salary of £200,000.

B Annual bonus

The annual bonus motivates the executive directors and other senior
execulives 10 achieve the group's key operationa! and strategic objectives.
Awards depend on achieving quantified financial and non-financial targets.
The nen-financial targets may include measures related to the licensed multi-
utility operations' performance against customer service standards and the
group’s ervironmental performance. Awards can e up 1o 60 per cent of
annugal salary. Annual bonus awards may be made partly or whaolly in shares
where a participant has still to satisfy the company's minimum share
ownership target.

+  Banefits far 2000401 include relacation costs of £114,100 far John Robads and
excaptional recruitment costs of £125,000 for Siman Batey and £32,000 for
Les Dawsen.

+  Benefits for 2001/02 includs relocation cests of £31,700 for Les Dawson.

Far 2002, executive directors could earn annual bonus awards worth up to
60 per cent of their salary. 24 per cent was allocated to the group’s PBEIT
{profit before exceptional items, interest and tax} target and 24 per cent to
the group's PBET (profit before exceptional items and tax) target. For each
of the measurss, payments would not be made until an initial target was
achieved, at which point a guarter of the bonus became payable. The full
PBEIT or PBET bonus element was only payable for achieving or exceeding
a demanding stretch target, The remaining 12 per cent was allocated across
quantified environmental and employes-related targets and a customer
senvice targel related to each of the company’s water, wastewater and
electricity distribution operations. If a target was achieved, the whole of the
bonus allocated to that target was payable; f it was not achieved, none was
payable.

The results for the year showed that the group’s PBEIT performance did not
meet the stretch target, Consequently, the bonus payable for this element
was restricted to 21.29 per cent. The group’s PBET, environmental,
employee-related and customer service targets were fully achieved. This
squated to an overall achievernent of 95.4 per cent of the maximum.

As a result, the following annual bonus payments have been made:

Maximum award Actual award Aggregate value
(% of salany) {% of salary)
2002
£000
John Roberts 60 57.29 210.1
& . 57es 1556
Les Daw €0 L5729 118.6
Gordon Waters 60 57.29 1139

United Wtilities PLC Annuat Report & Accounts 2002

35




In previous years, some or all of the bonus was paid as contingent shares to be held in trust for a set period. Details of shares held on such a deferred basis

during the year are set out below:

Contingant interest

Award in Contingent interest in Contingent interest in In shares added Shares transferred to Contingent interest in
respect of sharas at date of award  shares at 31 March 2001 during the year  executive during the vear  shares at 31 March 2002
Na. Value No. Value No. Value Ne. Value [R=% Value

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 21
JohnRobens 20ce  10:471 698 11,200 €85 850 58 T - zese 728
2001 12,906 g4t - - e 68 . T Bo5
SmonBatey 2001 10766 702 - - 98 57 - - 71.3
Les Dawson . .01 8480 25 - - 281 18 - - &7 229
GodonWaters 2000 8008 401 5426 393 487 30 - - 6913 422
2001 7,484 48.8 - - 632 3.9 - - 8,118 49.6

Notes

«  The 2000 awards were made under the former short-term incentive plan. The
values are the bonuses for that year which were paid wholly as contingent shares
to be held in trust, based on a share price of 667 pencs. This was the average of
the mid-market prices of a share cver the 30 business days starting 15 business
days before 31 March 2000.

*  The 2001 awarcs were made on 1 Juns 2001 under the terms of the deferred
share plan whereby S0 per cent of the valus of the annual bonus was paid as
contingent shares {to be held in trust for three vears), based on a shars price of
652 pence. This was the average of the mid-markst prices of a share for the thres
business days immediately prior to the award data.

+  The value of the contingent interast in sharas on 31 March 2001 is based on the
mid-markst price of a share on 30 March 2001 of 612 pence {31 March 2001 was
not a frading day).

C Other benefits
Directors have the use of a fully-expensed car {or are paid a cash amount
instead ¢f a company cary and are provided with medical insurance.

D Long-term incentives

{i Long-term Incentive pian

The long-term incentive plan has been phased out and replaced by the
performance share plan. The final allocations of shares in respect of
long-term awards made under the scheme are due to be made in respect of
the performance periods ended on 31 March 2002, However, no allocations
will be made because the relevant criteria were not met.

Under the plan, the company's total shareholder return {TSR) perfermance
is compared with that of other companies over consecutive financial vears.
The comparison is made with two groups based on the FTSE 100 at the
beginning of the performance period. The first group is the FTSE 100 utility
companies. The second group comprises FTSE 100 companies excluding
the utility companiss.

At the end of the performance periad shares are aflocated to participants
based on the company's ranking in these two groups. Separate cemparisons
are made against each group, Up to half of the maximum allocation is based
on performance against one of the groups and up to half based on performance
against the other. Allocations are only made if the company is ranked in the
top half of a group. The maximum allocation will be paid if the company’s
performance is ranked in the upper quartile in both groups and has an
annual TSR of &1 least 25 per cent. The maximum allocation for an executive
director is equivalent to 70 per cent of annual salary and equivalent to 87.5
per cent for the chief executive.
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+  The contingent interest in shares added during the year is calculated by taking the
values of notional dividends payable on 1 October 2001 and 11 February 2002 on
the shares in trust and dividing by the mid-markst prices of a share on those dates,
These were 629.5 pance and 604 pence respectively.

¢ The value of the contingent interest in shares on 31 March 2002 is based cn the
mid-market price of a shars on 28 March 2002 of 611 pence (28 March 2002 was
the last trading day prior to the year end).

12,050 and 6,913 shares in respect of the 2000 award were transferred to

Jorn Roperts ant Gordon Waters respectively upen thelr release from the plan on
30 May 2002. The valugs on the date of transfer wers £78,168 and £44,845
rgspectively, based on a share price 648.7 pence on that day.

No allocation s made if the adjusted garnings per share over the three-year
performance pericd has not grown by at least the same as the increase in
the retall prices index pius two per cent eachn year over the pericd. Two-thirds
of the value of awards are normally made in contingent shares held in trust
and transferred to the executive two years after the end of the period to
which the awards relate. The remaining one-third is paid in cash after the end
of the performance period.

The leng-term awards made to John Roberts and Simon Batey were their
first awards under the plan. The propertion of that award which would vest
was based on the company's comparative and absolute TSR performance
and growth in earnings per share over the two years ended 31 March 2002.
The company's TSR perfermance relative to the FTSE 100 excluding utility
companies placed it 32nd out of 83, The company's TSR performance
against the FTSE 100 utility companies placed it 7th out of 18, However, no
allocation will be made because the company did not achieve the growth in
earnings per share target.

The long-term award for Gordon Waters was based on the company’s
comparative and absolute TSR performance and growth in earnings per
share over the three years ended 31 March 2002. The company’s TSR
performance relative 1o the FTSE 100 excluding utility companies placed it
48th out of 81 and, therefore, no allecation will be made. The company’s
TSR performance against the FTSE 100 utllity companies placed it 10th out of
20. However, ne allocation will be made because the company did not
achigve the growth in earmings per share target,

(i) Performance share plan
The performance shars plan was adopted at the annual general meeting held
on 21 July 2000, Participation in the performance share plan is restricted 1o




executive directors and other senior executives, selected at the discretion
of the plan's trustee (United Utilities Employee Share Trust Limited) on the
regommendation of the remuneration committee. Participants are awarded
a right to acquire shares (or, at the discretion of the trustee, the cash
equivalent) worth up 1o 80 per cent of an executive's yearly salary as at the
date of grant. The number of shares awarded is based on the market price
of a share at the award date. However, the proportion of that award that will
vest depends on the group’s performance against specified targets over a
performance peried. This pericd is usually not less than three years’ duration,
beginning at the start of the financial year during which the award is made.

For those awards granted on 29 March 2001 and 9 July 2001, the
performance measure is the company's total shareholder return (TSR)
compared with a group of 27 and 25 companies respectively, comprising

major water and electricity companies and industrial and service companies

of broadly the same size as the company with most of their revenues earmed in
the UK. Awards will not vest unless the remuneration committee is satisfied that
the company’s recorded TSR performance is consistent with the achievement
of appropriate measures of underlying business performance, Subject to that,
if the company’s TSR perforrance is at the median of the comparater group,
participants may receive 33 per cent of the maximum number of shares in
their award. If the company’'s TSR performance places it in the upper
quartile, participants may receive the maximum number of shares in their
award. The proportion of the award which the participant may receive for the
company’s TSR perfarrnance ranking between the median and uppsr guartile
of the comparater group will be calculated on a straight-line basis. Mo award
will vest if the company’s TSR parformance is below the median of the
comparator group.

Contingent scheme Contingent scheme
Award details interest at 1 April 2001 interest at 31 March 2062
Market price Max. no. Max. no. Max.  Max. no. Max,
Award date Performance period Maximum value of a share of shares of shares value  of shares value
% of salary E000 pence £000 000
John Roberts
._'2_000/01 ) 290301 01.04.00 to 31 0303 ) 80 256.0 607.@ 42,139 42,139 ) 2579 42,139 257.5
2001/02 06.07.01 01.04.01 to 31.03.04 80 256.0 652.0 39,263 - - 39,263 239.9
total 42,138 257.8 81,402 497.4
Simon Batey y _ _ e
200001 ... 290301 0104001031.0603 80 2080 6075 34238 34268 2005 34208 2002
2001/02 09.07.01 01.04.01 to 31.03.04 80 208.0 652.0 31,901 - - 31,901 194.9
total 34,238 209.5 66,139 404.1
Les Dawson : .
2000/ } 29:Q3_.Q1_ o QW_.O4.00 10 31.03.03 ] B _65 ] 130.0 607._5_ B 2‘1 .399 21,369 131.0 21,399 130.7
2001/02 09.07.01 01.04.01 10 31.03.04 80 160.0 652.0 24,539 — - 24,539 149.9
tota! 21,399 131.0 45,938 280.6
Gordon Waters
200 B 29.03..0j. . 01.04.00 to 31.03.03 _146.4 807.5 24.09% 24,098 147.5 24,098 1472
2001/02 09.07.01 01.04.01 t0 31.03.04 146.4 852.0 22,453 - - 22,453 137.2
total 24,098 147.5 48,651 284.4
Notes

+  The maximum values shown have been calculated using the mid-market price of
a United Utilities PLC share on close of business on ths relevant date or, if not a
trading day, the last trading day immeadiately prior to that date,

*  The above awards were granted as ‘option awards'. The options are exercisable
over a period of three months from the vesting date. No consideration is payable
by the executives either upon grant of the option award or upon the subseguent
exercise of the option.

*  No awards vested during the year.
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Share options
The directors can join the all-employee ShareSave scheme. They do not participate in the company share option scheme 1999. Further details of ShareSave
options, including options exarcised during the year, are as follows:

Grantecl/
At Aprit Jfgsea) Exercised At Exercise Market Motional
2001 or on during during 31 March price per First date Last date price on gain on
appointment the year the year 2002 share exercisable isable  exorcise £ exercisa ©
John Roberts SR
ShareSave 2000 3519 - - 8579 4m5p 01082005 31082005 - -
otal 3,579 - T8sTe -
Simaon Batey o
ShareSave 2001 1,740 - - 1,740 5565p  01.03.2004 31082004 - -
1,740 - - ir4g
Les Dawson OIS P P PP .
ShareSave 2001 B, 3032 - - 3032 s5565p  01.032008  31.08.2006 - -
total i 3,032 - - 3032 -
Gordon Wa_teré
ShareSave 1997 3623 - B 0202.2002 ~ 01.08.2002
SharsSave 2002 . LT 2280 01.03.2007  01.08.2007
oal 3,623 13,623
Neotes

+  The mid-market price of a share on 28 March 2002 was 611 pence and the range
in the year was 578 pance to 673.5 pence.

Pansion arrangements

The United Utilities Pension Scheme is a defined benefit pension scharme,
which is open to all eligible employees, It provides pensions and other
bensfits to members within Intand Revenue limits. All the current exscutive
directors are members and contribute to the scheme. It provides a pension
for them on normal retirement at age 60 equal to 1/30th of pensionable
eamnings for each completed year of service. The maximum pension fs two-
thirds of pensionable eamings. Early ratirernent is possible from age 50 if tha
company agrees.

The Finance Act 1988 restricts the pension benefits that can be paid by the
scheme to the current executive directors because the earnings cep limits

Accumuiated total acerued
pension at 1 April 2001

*  The aggregats notional gain made by directors on the exercise of options during the
year (based on the difference between the mid-market price of a share on the day on
which opticns were exercised and the exercise price] was £4,456 (2001 - £nil).

pensionable earnings far calculating benefits. Tha campany has put in place
separate arrangements the effect of which is to provide for them the same
pension benefits as for those executives whose pension benefits are not
limited by the cap. These arrangements are unfunded.

Although pension benefits are normally calculated on basic salary only, to
pratect his contractual entitlernent, the calculations are adjusted for Gordon
Waters, whose annual bonus had been pensionable before the incentive plan
was introduced.

The pension benefits earned by directors are as follows:

Increase in acorued pension during the year Accumulated fotal accrued

at 31 March 2002

Member Transter valug

Transfer valug £000 pa contriputions {net of member Transfer value

£'000 pa 2000 {net of inflation) £000 contributions) £'000 pa £00¢

John Reberts 164 245.8 150 143 2035 315 458.3

Simon Batey 87 983 94 13.6 82,8 184 186.4

Les Dawson 2.8 25.4 o 10.4 49.6 9.8 83.9

Gordon Waters 39.8 571.5 1.7 14.3 146.7 51.7 714.9

Totals &6r.7 938.0 43.2 52.6 482.6 111 1,443.5
Notes

*  The accumulated total accrued pension at year end is that which would be paid
annually on retirement at age 60 based on service to 31 March 2002.

+  Theincrease in accrued pension during the year excludes any increase for inflation.

+  The transfer valus figures have been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice in
accordance with Actuarial Guidance Mote GN11. The transfer value of the increase
in the accrued pension during the yvear is net of directors' contributions. Tha
transfer valug of bensfits at 31 March 2002 and the transter value of the increase
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in the accrued pension during the year are based on each director's age and
investment conditions at 31 March 2002 (the transfer vaiue of the benefits at 1 April
2001 is based on the director's age and investmant conditions at that date).

*  Nsither the contributions nhor the resulting benefits from any additionat voluntary
contributions paid are reflected in the above table.

+  The transfer value represents a liability of the company to make pension payments
in the future but not a sum paid or due 1o the individual.




Contracts of service and compensation for termination

The company’s policy is that the executive directers normally have one-year
notice periods. The company may offer a longer notice period if 1t considers
that necessary to recruit a new director. If it offers an initial notice period of
maore than one year, it will usually reduce that to one year after the initial
pericd. All the current executive directors have one-year notice perieds.

If a contract is to be terminated, the remuneration committee will determine
such mitigation it considers is fair and reasonable in each circumstance and
the compensation that may be paid. It will take into account the best
practice provisions of the Combined Code and will take legal advice an the
company’s liability 10 pay compensation and the amount of the

Directors’ interests

compeansation in sach case. The committee reviews this policy each year.
No changes were made during the year.

Policy on external appoinfments

The company recognises that its executive directors may be invited to
becoms non-executive directors of other companies and that exposure to
such ner-executive duties can broaden experience and knowledge, which
will be to the bensfit of the company. Subject to board approval (which wil
not be given if the proposed appeintment is with & compsting company or
would otherwise lead to a conflict of interest), executive directors are allowed
to accept non-executive directorships and to retain the fees.

At 31 March 2002, the directars and their immediate families had the following interests, all of which wers beneficial interests, in the company's shares and

options to subscribe for shares:

At 1 April 2001 or upon gppointment At 31 March 2002

Share Deferred Share  Deferred

Shares Options Sharas Total Shares Opticns Shares Total

John_ Robsrts ______ 3,000 3,579 11,200 ) 17,779 3,000 ) 3,579 2_(3,947 32,626

SIMONBEMSY e e 427150 1740 - 43890 42150 1,740 11,675 55,585

Les Dawson - 3,032 - 3032 2,000 3,032 3,741 8,773

Gordon Water_gm_ 1‘6‘.,166 3,623 .‘5,426 26,215 .‘””19,789 ) 2.,”290 15,029‘ 37,108

Sir Richard Evans 245 - - 245 245 - - 245

e a4t - - 341 841 RO - an

.......... 474 T <. 45874 4574 .

Jane Newell 3,419 T - 348 838 - -... 3358

Andrew Pinder - - - - - - - -

_J.th”Seed 4,024 - - 4.02’-} 4,076 - - 4,076
Notes

+  Each exacutive director is a member of the class of discretionary beneficiaries of
the Unitad Utilities Employse Share Trust and the United Utiities Qualifying
Employee Shars Ownership Trust and is therefors treated as having an interest in
the shares held by Unitad Utilties Employee Share Trust Limited as trustee of the
United Utilities Employee Share Trust (28,921 shares at 31 March 2002) and in the
shares held by United LRilities QUEST Trustes Limited as trustee of the United
Utilities Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust (863,538 shares at 31 March
2002). As at 31 May 2002, United Utilities Employse Share Trust Limited held 9,958
shares and United Utifities QUEST Trustee Limitedt held 802,682 shares,

Except as dascribed above, none of the directors had any interest in any share
capital of any other group company or in any debenture of any group company.

The directors who are standing for re-election at the annual
general meeting

Norman Broadhurst, John Seed and Simon Batey are standing, and are
recommended by the board for re-election, at the 2002 annual general
rneeting. Andrew Finder is standing for election for the first time having been
appainted as an additional director by the board on 1 September 2001. As
non-executive directors, Norman Broadhurst, Andrew Pinder and John Seed
da not have contracts of service. The company can terminate Simon Batey's
contract by giving him one year's notice.

From the end of the financial year until 21 May 2002, thers have been the following
changes in the above interests:

On 24 April 2002, John Seed's wils rainvested a dividsnd in the United Utilities
personal equity plan and thereby acquired a further 18 sharss,

On 30 May 2002, 12,050 and 6,913 deferred sharas were transferred to John
Roberts and Gordon Waters respectively upon release from the trust. Gordon
Waters sold 2,771 of those shares on the same day.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
United Utilities PLC
We have audited the financial statements on pages 42 to 74.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and form 20-F.
As described on page 32 this includes responsibility for preparing the
financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and
accounting standards; the directors have alsc presented additional
infarmation under US requirements. Cur responsibilities, as independent
auditers, are established by statute in the United Kingdom, auditing
standards generally accepted in the United Kingdom and the United States,
the Listing Rules of the United Kingdom Financial Services Authority, and by
our profession’s ethical guidance.

We report 1o you cur opinion as to whether the financial statements give a
true and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1885. Wa also report to you I, in our opinion, the directors’
report is not consistent with the financial statements, if the company has net
kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit, or if informaticn specified by law or
the Listing Rules regarding diractors' remuneration and transactions with the
group is not disclosed.

We raview whether the statement on page 32 reflects the company’s
cormpliance with the seven provisions of the Combined Code specified for
our review by the Listing Rules, and we report if it does not. We are not
required to consider whether the board's stalements on internal control cover
all risks and controls, or form an opinicn on the effectiveness of the group's
corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures,

We read the other information contained in the annual report and form 20-F,
including the corporate governance statement, and consider whether thay
are consistent with the audited financial statements. We consider the
implicaticns for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material iInconsistencies with the financial statements,

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United Kingdom and the United States. An audit Includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also inciudes an assessment of
the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the

preparation of the financial staterments, and of whether the accounting
pdlicies are appropriate to the group's circumstances, cansistently applied
and adequately disclosed,

We planned and performed our audit 0 as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considersd necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statemeants
are free from malerial misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or other
irregularity or error. In forming our opinicn we also evaluated the overall
presentation of informaticn in the financial staternents. We believe that our
audit process provides a reascnable basis for our opinion.

United Kingdom opinion

In our opinion, the financial statemerds give a true and fair view of the state
of the affairs of the cormpany and the group as at 31 March 2002 and of the
profit of the group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companias Act 1985.

United States opinton

In our opinion, the consolidated financlal statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial pasition of the group as at 31 March 2002
and 2001 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended 31 March 2002 in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United Kingdom.

Generally accepted acsounting principles in the United Kingdom vary in
certain significant respects from generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States, Appiication of generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States would have affected results of operations for each of the
years In the three-year pericd ended 31 March 2002 and consclidated
shareholders’ equity at 31 March 2002 and 2001, to the extent summarised
in note 36 to the accounts.

As described in note 21 the group changed its accounting policy with
respect to deferred taxes as of 1 April 2001 and restated the financial
statements for the years ended 31 March 2001 and 2000 to reflsct the new
aWE M 4

KPMG Auditﬁé é{ ﬂCL"

Chartered Accountants

Registered Auditor

Manchester

31 May 2002
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Lontinuing operations __Continuing o@rahonsmsoc;errgmi Continuing gggrmicnleso:;e:g%gends
Before Before Restated Bafore Restated
exceptional Exceptional 2002 exceptional Exceptional 2001 exceptional Exceptional 2000
items items Total terns itemns Tetal iternsg iterns Totat
For the year ended 31 March Note £m £m £m £m em £m £m £m &m £m em
Turnover: group and share of joint veniures 2 18764 - 1,876.4 1,574.4 - 2015 11,7759 16339 - 7920 24259
Lasgs: share of joint vanture turnover (85.4) - (85.4) (78.3) - - (78.3) ({B9.6) - - (69.6)
Group tumover 17910 - 17910 14961 - 2015 16978 15643 - 7920 23563
Net operating costs 3 {1,254.3) (11.9) (1,266.2) (997.4) (16.6) (179.9) (1,193.9) (948.8) (28.6) (717.5) (1,694.9)
Group operating profit B38BT (11.9) 5248 4987  (16.6) 216 5037 6155 (28.6} 745 661.4
Share of operating profit of joint ventures 2,13 14.0 - 14.0 10.3 - - 10.3 4.0 - - 4.0
Profit before non-operating items,
interestandtax 2 8507 (119) 5888 5090 (166 216 5140 6195 (286) 745 6654
Profit on disposal of businesses 4 - 191.2 -
Profit on ordinary activities before interest 5388 7052 665.4
Net interest payable and similar charges: _ o
Gowp 7 @67 @87 (196.1)
Joint ventures 713 (13.9) (11.8) 9.9)
7 {230.8) {220.3) (206.0)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 308.2 484.9 3 458.4
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities before
business disposals o 8 (41.6) {69.7) {82.4)
Exceptional taxation on business disposals 8 - (69.0) T
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 8 (41.8) 138.7) {92.4)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation ""2”66:.6 i 346.2 367.0
Equity minority interast {1.6) - -
Profitfor the financial year 24 _ 2650 o 8462 367.0
Dividends 9,24 (260.9) (254.9) {248.8)
Retained profit for the financial year 91.3 118.2
Basic eamings per share 10 6280 ... ..88.7p
Adjusted basic earnings e 10 41.2p 61.2p
Dilted earnings per share oo e 6250 .-
Adjusted diluted earmings per share 10 41.0p 60.8p

See accompanying notes to the accounts,

There were no material differences between reported profits and historical cost profits on ordinary activities before taxation in any of the above financial vears.
Tha results of joint venture acouisitions have nat been disclosed separately as they da not form & significant part of the group's results,

Prior years' results have been restated to show the effects of applying FRS 18 Deferred Tax as explained in notes 8, 21 and 24,

Included within net operating costs of discontinued operations far 2000 are exceptional charges in respect of Year 2000 costs of £2.4 millicn,
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Group Cormpany
Restated
2002 2001 2002 2001
At 31 March Note £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Itengible sssets M. 812 886 - -
L o 12 6,680.5 86,3857 1.1 1.8
investm i idiary undertaki DA e - 55656 58195
Investments in joint ventures:
-shofgrossessets 2755 3395 - -
- share of gross labllities (218.4) (248.6) - -
..................... 13 57‘1 go‘g - o
Other investments 13 264 293 3.9 ag
6,845.2 6,504.5 5,570.6 5,825.2
CUrrent assets e e
SWCks 14185 180 - -
Debtors 15 4146 4360 1,6721 1,352.3
Investments 16 3805 4053 804 676
Gash at barnk and in hand 189 507 178 0.2
839.5 $10.0 1,770 1,4301
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 17 1,344.2) (1,538.4) (1,900.3) (1,547.8}
MNet current liabilities (504.7) (628.4) (130.2) (117.7)
Total assets less current liabilities 6,340.5 5966.1 54404 57075
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 18 (3,478.2) (3,093.2) (753.1) (753.1)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 20 (310.8) (261.8)  (4.1)  (&.3)
Net assets 26515 26111 4,683.2 49501
DAl AN (I S
Called up share captal 24 555.9 552.9 555.9 552.9
Share premium account ' 24 BB 6568 671.6 6564
Profitend loss account 24 1,3088 1,3880 9109 1,958
Cther reserves 24 - TZ 25848 25148
Equity shareholders’ funds 2,638.3 2,587.5 4,683.2 4,950.1
Minority interest 15.2 136 - -
Capital employed 2,651.56 26111 4,683.2 4,950.1

See accompanying notes to the accounts,

Prior year figures have been restated to show the effects of applying FRS 19 Deferred Tax as explained in notes 8, 21 and 24.

Approved by the board of directors on 31 May 2002 and signed on its behalf by

Sir Richard Evans Chairman

Simon Batey Group Finance Director
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2002 2001 2000
Far the year ended 31 March MNote £m £m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities 28 802.2 842.5 884.3
Income from joint ventures 2.1 - -
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 29 (223.7) (190.1}  {(191.6)
Taxation {2.4) {1.7) {37.3)
Capital expenditure and financial investment 30 (5BB.0) (5737 (B37.0)
Acquisitions and disposats e e e
Acquisitions o — 3 (2.8)  (197.1)  (20.7)
Disposals 31 7.0 3125 -
(9.8) 1954 (20.7)
Equity dividends paid {266.1) (2501}  (450.1)
Cash (outflow)/inflow before use of liquid rescurces and financing (273.7) 223 (452.4)
Management of liquid resources 32 13.4 (328.7) 3.1)
Finanoing .. L
lssues of shares L 33 180 1839 38
Increase in debt 33,34 2021 3181 3145
220.1 332.0 3181
(Decrease)/increase in cash (40.2) 25.6 (137.4}
2002 2001 2000
For the year ended 31 March Note £m £ £m
{Decreaselincrease incash N (402) 266 (1374
Cash inflow from increase in debt and leass financing (202.1) (318.1) (314.5)
Cash (inflow)outflow from management of liquid resources (134) 3287 3.1
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows S (255.7) 362 (448.8)
Exchange adjustments 3 (6.2) ©.1)
Movement n net debt e . [B544) 300 (4489
Opening net debt {2,806.4) (2,836.4) (2,387.5)
Net debt at 31 March 34 (3,060.8) (2,806.4) (2,836.4)
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For the year ended 31 March

P Rt gt e ey gl
[y Fu%, ey 34
LACATT JaE DA 14
Group
Restated Restated
2002 2001 2000
Note £m £m om

Group

2673 3506 8747

Joint ventures

Currency translation adjustmant on equity investment in Argentina
Other exchange adjustments

Total recognised gains and losses for the financial year

186.7 374.8 36865

Prior year adjustment - deferred tax 24 (232.1)
Total gains and losses recognised since last annual report {45.4)
Graup Cormnpany
Restated Restated
2002 2001 2000 2002 2000
For the year ended 31 March £m £m £m £m £m

Prafit/{loss} for financial year
Diviclends

2650 3462 3670 (2400 (1944

(260.9) (254.9) (248.8) (260.8) (254.9)

New shars capilal issued

4.1 91.3 1182 (284.9) (449.3)

Profit afiging on internal restrugturing T T T 20448

e 18.0 13,9 3.6 18.0 13.9
Capitalisaion of reserves In respect of shares issved ia QUEST Bo 08 - - -
Goodwil on business disposals — - Toto - Z -
Urraalised gain an sale of minorily interast in Vertex Data Science Limited = 34.4 - - -
Currency transiation adjustment on equity investment in Argentina {79.3) - - -

Other exchange adjustments

10 ®.0) 0.5) Z z

Net {decrease)/increase in equity shareholders’ funds for the year

61.2) 2331 1213  (266.8) 2,109.4

Opening equity sharsholders’ funds

2,5697.5 2,364.4 22431 4,9501 28407

Equity sharehclders’ funds at 31 March

2,536.3 2,5975 23644 4,683.2 4,950.1

Effect of prior year adjustments on opening equity shareholders’ funds

Group
2002 2001 2000
£m £m £m

Prior year adjustment {ncte 24)

2,820.6 25174 12,3051

{232.1)  (153.0) 62.0}

Cpening shareholders funds as restated

2,597.5 23644 2,243
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing
with Rems which are considered material in relation to the group's financial
statements.

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The censclidated financial statements of United Utilities PLC and its
subsidfaries (the group) set out on pages 42 to 69 have been prepared under
the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable accounting
standards and the Companies Act 1985 except as noted below under

item {h).

Unless otherwise stated, the acquisition method of accounting has been
adopted. Under this methad, the results of subsidiary undertakings acquired
or disposed of in the year are included In the consolidated profit and loss
account from the dats of acquisition or up to the date of disposal.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United Kingdom requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the:

- reported amounts of assets and liabfities;

- disclosure of contingent assets and kabilities at the date of the financial
statements; and

— reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reperting period.
Actual resulis could differ from those estimates.

In the year ended 31 March 2002 the group has adopted Financial Reporting
standard (FRS) 19 *‘Deferred Tax', the application of which is reflscted in the
currrent period and has also resulted in changes to the prior period reported
results as per notes 1{(o), 8, 21 and 24.

(b) Cash

n the consolidated cash flow statement and related notes, cash includes
cash at bank, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts; deposits are
repayable on demand if they are in practics available within 24 hours
without penaity.

(¢} Turnover

Turnover represents the income receivable in the ordinary course of business
for goods or senvices provided, which includes an estimate of the sales valug
of units supplied to customers between the date of the last meter reading
and the year end, exclusive of value added tax and foreign sales tax,

{d) Research and development
Expenditure on research and development is expensed as incurred.

{e) Pre-contract costs

Costs incurred in the development of activities are either written off ar, where
appropriate, capitalised and fully provided against until their recovery is
considered tc be secured by profitable contracts. Such capitalised costs are
amortised over the expected life of the contract.

{f) Goodwill

Purchased goodwill {both positive and negative) arising on consolidation

in respect of acquisitions bafare 1 Al 1998, when Financial Repeorting
Standard 10 ‘Goodwill and intangible assets' was adopted, was written off to
reserves in the year of acquisition. When a subsequent disposal occurs, any
related goodwill previously written off to reserves is written back through the
profit and loss account as part of the profit or loss on disposal,

46 United Utilities PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2002

Purchased goodwill (representing the excess of the fair value of the
cansideration and associated costs over the fair value of the separable net
assets acquired) arising on consolidation in respect of acquisitions since

1 April 1998 is capitalised. Positive goodwil is amartised to nil by equal annual
Instaiments over its estimated useful life, generally not exceeding 20 years.

On the subsequent disposal or termination of & business acquired since

1 April 1998, the profit or loss on disposal or termination is calculated after
charging/{crediting) the unamortised amount of any related
goedwill/(negative goodwill).

In the company's financial staternents, investments In subsidiary
undertakings, assocfates and joint ventures are stated at cost.

(g} Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets comprise infrastructure assets {mains, sewers,
impounding and pumped raw water storage reservairs, dams, sludge
pipelines and sea oultfalls) and other assets (including properties, overground
plant and equipment and electricity operationat assets).

Infrastructure assets

infrastructure assets comprise a network of water and wastewater systems.
Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating to increases in capacity or
enhancements of the network and on maintaining the operating capability
of the network in accordance with defined standards of senvice is treated as
an addition, which is included at cost after deducting related grants and
contributions.

The depreciation charge for infrastructure assets is the estimated level
of annual expenditure required to maintain the operating capability of the
network which is based on the group’s independentiy certified asset
management plan.

Employes costs incurred in implementing the capital schemes of the group
are capitalised within fixed assets.

Other assets

Additions are included at cost, Freshold land is not depreciated. Other assets
are depreciated by writing off their cost less their estimated residual value
avenly over thelr estimated economic lives, based on management’s
judgement and experience, which are principally as follows:

Bulildings 30-60 years
Operational assets 5-80 years
Fixtures, fittings, tocls and equipment 3-40 years
Compuler software 3-10 years

Carrying value of tangible fixed assets

The carrying values of fixed assets are reviewed for impaiment wherever
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of such assets may not be
recoverable.

(h) Grants and contributions

Capital contributions towards infrastructure assets are deducted from the
cost of those assets. This is not in accordance with Schedule 4 to the
Companies Act 1985 under which the infrastructure assets should ke stated
at their purchase price or production cost and the capital contributions
treated as deferred income and released to the profit and loss account over
the uselul life of the corresponding assats. Tha directars are of the opinian
that, although provision is mads for depreciation of infrastructure assets (see
note (g) above}, these assets have no finite economic lives and the capital
contributions would therefore remain in the balance sheet in perpetuity. The
treatment otherwise required by the Companies Act 1985 would not present




a true and fair view of the group's effective investment in infrastructure
assets. The financial effect of this accounting poficy is set out in note 12.

Grants receivabla in respect of other tangible fixed assets are treated as
deferred income, which is credited to the profit and loss account over the
estimated economic lives of the related assets.

(i) Leased assets

Assets financed by leasing arrangements which transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee {finance leases) are capitalised
in the consclidated balance sheet and the corresponding capital cost is
shown as an obiigation to the lessor. Leasing repayments comprise both

a capital and a finance elerment. Where the iease is of a fixed interest rate
nature, the finance element is written off to the profit and loss account so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
outstanding obligation. Where the lease is of a floating interest rate nature,
the finance element written off to the profit and loss account reflects the
floating interest rate charge incurred during the period on the outstanding
obligation. Such assets are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated
useful lives and the period of the lease.

Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account on
a stralght line basis over the period of the lease.

(j) Fixed asset investments

Fixed asset investments, except for investments in associated undertakings
and joint ventures, are stated at the lower of cost and recoverable amount.
The consolidated profit and loss account includes the group's share of the

profits less losses and taxation of associated undertakings and joint ventures,

The group balance sheet includes the investment in associated undertakings
and joint ventures at the group’s share of their net assets in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standard 9.

{k) Current asset investments
Current asset investments are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

{ly Stocks
Stocks are stated at cost less any provision necessary to recognise damage
and obsclescence.

Finished goods and goods for resale are stated at the lower of cost,
including appropriate production overheads, and net realisable value.

{m} Pensicns

The group cperates a numbper of dsfined benefit schemes, which are
independent of the group’s finances, for the substantial majority of its
employees. Actuarial valuations of the schemes are carried out as
determined by the trustees at intervals of not more than three years, the
rates of contribution payable and the pension cost being determined on

the advice of the actuaries, having regard to the results of thess valuations.
In any intervening vears, the actuaries review the continuing appropriateness
of the contribution rates.

The cost of praviding pensions is expensed over employees’ working lives.
Variations from regular cost are allocated over the average remaining service
lives of current emplovees. Any difference between the charge to the profit
and l0ss account in respect of funded plans and the contributions payable
to each plan is recorded in the consolidated balance shest as a prepayment
or provision,

The group has included the disclosure requirernents of Financial Reporting
Standard 17 in note 25, together with details of pension and funding
arrangements.

{n) Foreign surrency

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates ruling
on the dates of the transactions, adjusted for the effects of any hedging
arrangements. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
franslated into stevling at the relevart raies of exchange ruling af the
consolidated balance sheet date.

On consclidation, the balance sheets of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into sterling at exchange rates applicable at the year end. The profit and
loss accounts ara franslated into sterling using the average rate. Exchange
differences resutting from the transtation of such balance sheets at rates
ruling at the beginning and end of the year, together with the differences
petween profit and loss accounts ranstated at average rates and rates
ruling at 31 March, ara dealt with as movements on group resenves,

Where net investments in overseas subsidiaries are matched in whole or

in part by foreign currency borrowings, the exchange differences arising on
the re-translation of such borrowings are also recorded as mavements an
group reserves to the extent atlowed by Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice 20. Any excess is taken to the profit and loss account.

(o) Taxation

Current tax, including UK corperation tax and forsign tax, is provided at
amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deterred tax is recogrissed in respect of all iming differences that have
originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where transactions or
events that resull in an cbiigation o pay more tax in the future or a right to
pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date. Timing
differences are differences between the group’s taxable profits and its results
as stated in the financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and
losses in tax assessments in perods different from those in which they are
recegnised in the financial statements.

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply
in the periods in which the timing diffesences are expected (o reverse, baged
on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance shest date. Deferred tax is measured on a discounted basis to
reftect the time value of money over the period between the balance sheet
date and the dates en which it is estimated that the undarlying timing
differences wil reverse. The discount rates used reflect the post-tax yields
to maturity that can be obtained on government bonds with similar maturity
dates and currencies to those of the deferred tax assets or liabilities.

(P} Joint ventures

Joint ventures are entities in which United Utilities FLC holds an interest on

a long-term basis and which are jointly controlled with one or more other
parties under a contractual arrangement. The group’s share of profits less
losses of joint ventures is included in the profit and loss account on the gross
equity accounting basis.

(qQ) Financial instruments

Debt instruments

New borrowings are stated at net proceeds received after deduction of issue
costs. The issue costs of debt instruments are amortised at a constant rate
over the life of the instrument,

Interest rate swaps and financial futures

Interest rate swap agreements and financial futures are used to manage
interest rate exposure. Instruments that are designed as a hedge of a

debt are accounted for on an accruals basis, with amounts payable or
receivable in respect of these instruments being recognised as adjustments
1o interest expense of the designated liability.
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Realised gains and losses that occur from the early termination of such
instrurments designated as a hedge are deferred and are amortised to
interest expense aver the pericd of the hedged position, to the extent
that the originally designated liability rermains outstanding.

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the notional amount of the group's
interest rate swaps and financial futures must not exceed the amount of its
existing variable rate debt, must change the interest rate characteristics of
the underlying debt and the contractual maturities cannot exceed the
maturities of the debt.

Currency swaps

The group enters into currency swaps to manage its exposure to fluctuations
in currency rates. Principal amounts are revalued at exchange rates ruling

at the date of the group balance sheet and included in the sterding value

of debt. Exchange gains and lossss are taken directly to reserves and are
included in the statement of total recognised gains and losses in accordance
with Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 20.

In erder to qualify for hedge accounting, the forward contract/currency swap
must relate to an existing asset, liability or firn commitment, be in the same
currency as the hedged item and reduce the risk of foreign currency
exchange movements on the group's operations,

{r} Share-based compensation arrangements

Shares issued as a result of the exercise of options granted in accordance
with tha rules of the schemes (see note 24} are recordad in share capital

and share premium at their exercise price at the date the option is exercised,
A compensation expense is recorded in respect of the executive share option
schemes for the difference, if any, between the exercise price and the share
price at the date of grant.

The costs of shert-term and [ong-lerm incentive awards to executive
directors in accordance with the incentive plan {see the report on
remuneration) are expensed on a straight line basis over the period in which
performance is measured. The amount to be expensed is based upon
management’s estimate of the probabfity that the performance criterta

will be met.

In respect of the group’s sharesave schemes no compensation expense is
recorded for the difference between the exercise price and the share price
at the date of grant or exercise as the group is taking advantage of the
exemption permitted by UITF 17 In respect of Inland Revenue approved
SAYE schemes.
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{s) Environmental remediation

Environmental expenditure that relates to current or future ravenues is
axpansad or capitalised as appropriata. Expenditure that relates 1o an
existing condition caused by past operations and does not contricute
to current or future earnings is expensed.

Ligbilities for environmental costs are recognised when environmental
assessments or clean-ups are probable and the associated costs can be
reascnably estimated, Generally, the timing of these provisions coincides with
the commitment to a formal plan of actions or, if earlier, on divestment or cn
closure of inactive sites.

{t) Recent UK accounting pronouncements

FRS 17, ‘Retirement Benefits’ was issued in December 2000 and is fully
effective for accounting periods ending on or after 22 June 2003, with
disclosure requirements being implemented earlier. This standard requires an
asset or a liability to be recognised in the group accounts for any surplus or
deficit in a defined benefit scheme, The group has adopted the disclosure
requirements of FRS 17 as set out in note 25.

UITF Abstract 34 'Pre-contract costs’ issued in May 2002 and effective for
accounting periods ending on or after 22 June 2002, is intended to bring
consistency to the accounting treatment of costs incurred in bidding for and
securing contracts to supply products or services, The Abstract requires that
costs incurred before it is virtually certain that a contract will be obtained
should be charged immediately as expenses. Directly attributable costs
incurred after that point should be recognised as an asset and chargsd as
expenses during the peried of the contract. Costs that have already besn
charged to the profit and loss account should not be reinstated as an asset
when a contract fs obtained. On adoption of UITF 34 next vear, the net
assets of the group wil reduce by approximately £11 milion on a post tax
basis. The current treatment is described in note 1(g).

UITF Abstract 35 ‘Death-in-service and incapacity benefits’ issued in May
2002 clarifies the accounting required by FRS17 ‘Retirement Benefits’ for the
cost of death-in-service and incapacity benefits, where such benefits are
provided through a defined benefit pension scheme, The Abstract requires
that, where the benefits are not wholly insured, the uninsured scheme liability
and the cost for the acceunting pericd should be measured, in line with other
retirement benefits, using the projected unit method. The effect is that the
valuation of uninsured benefits reflacts the current period’s portion of the full
benefits ultimately payable in respect of current members of the scheme; the
cost of insured benefits is determined by the relevant insurance premiums.




2 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Turnover, profit before non-operating terms, interest and tax and net operating assets for tach class of tusiness and 'ty geographical origin are set
cut below:

Profitfloss) before non-operating Net operating
Turnover (1) iterns, interest and tax (2) assets (3}
Restated  Restated
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Note £m £€m £m £m £m £m £im £m £m
Continuing businesses: e

Licensed multi-utiity operations . 1,2088 12016 11,3565 5296 5009 6026 62003 59137 58603
Asset managementservices . 8888 1976 1778 312 210 167 1262 2061 1254
Custorer management outsourcin ' 2829 2112 1830 150 96 126 680 487 272
Jelecommunications ) . L1852 1195 795 (20.5)  (209) (15€) 2249 1763 679
Otharacthilies s e 48 94 .84 T4 B3 88 681 603  (620)
Corporate costs - - - 4.0) {3.9) 3.9 - - -
2,037.5 1,739.3 1,803.2 558.7 513.0 6199 6,560.3 86,2845 6,057.8
Goodwil amortisation == 80 @0 04 - - -
Inter-business eliminations {4) (161.1) {(164.9) {[169.3} - - - - - -~
Continuing cperations, before exceptional charge 1,876.4 1,5744 1,633.9 550,7 5000 6195 6,560.3 6,2845 6057.8
Discontinued cperations . - . - - 2015 7920 - 216 789 - - 439
Exceptional tems {5) - - - {119 (16.6) [31.0) - - -
1,876.4 11,7759 2,425.9 538.8 514.0 6654 6,560.3 62845 6,101.7

By geographical origin: S .. ) UL e, S :
Urited Kingdom ... \T834 16833 203487 5372 5054 6544 65101 61679 60081
Europe _ _ - - _ 104 45 02 a7 oY 09 354 298 -
The Americas | 583  B57 628 31 47 BT 40 764 768
Rest of the world ' ' ' s 224 142 48 40 52 108 104 168

1,876.4 17759 24259 538.8 514.0 6654 6,560.3 62845 6,101.7

The accounting policies for each segment are the same as those appearing on pages 46 1o 48,

{1} Turnover includes the group's share of joint venture turnover of (5} Business restructuring costs in 2002 of £11.9 milion (2001 - £16.6
£85.4 milion (2001 - £78.3 million; 2000 — £69.8 milliory) primarily mificn} relate to severance costs impacting licensed multi-utility
refating to asset management services. operations £6.5 milion (2001 - £13.2 million), asset management

services £4.3 milion (20071 — £1.1 millien), telscommunications
£1.1 million {2001 — £0.5 milion) and customer management outsourcing
€nil (2001 ~ £1.8 milion).

{2} Profit before non-operating items, interest and tax comprises group
operating profit amounting to £524.8 million (2001 - £503.7 million;
2000 — £661.4 million} and share of operating profits of joint ventures
of £14.0 million {2001 - £10.3 milian; 2000 - £4.0 milion). Business restructuring costs in 2000 of £21.5 million relate to the

initiatives in respanse to the regulatory reviews impacting licensed

rmulli-utility operations £14.3 milion and customer management
outsourcing £7.2 million along with exceptional Year 2000 costs of

{4) The inter-business eliminations totalling £161.1 milion (2001 -~ £164.9 £6.5 million,
million; 2000 ~ £169.3 million} are mainly from customer managament
outsourcing primarily to the licensed muilti-utility operations entirely within
the United Kingdom.

(3} Net operaling assets comprise fixed assets and net current assets
excluding net debt, corporation and deferred taxation and dividends.

For US GAAP purposes, these exceptional items would be classitied as
a component of operating profit of the appropriate business segment.

6

The gsegraphical destination of turnover does not differ materially from
the gecgraphical origin analysis above.
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3 NET OPERATING COSTS

2002 2001 2000
Continuing
operations  Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
Total operations  operations Total  operations  operations Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Employee costs: e e e e
Wages and salaries 326.0 252.2 3.9 2661 232.4 16.5 247.9
Social security costs T 24.8 21.0 0.1 211 18.9 1.2 204
Pension contributions (note 25} 5.0 6.3 0.4 6.7 5.4 0.4 5.8
i 3558 279.6 4.4 283.9 256.7 171 273.8
Capital schemes {67.6} 50.9) - {50.9} (53.5) - {53.5)
288.2 228.6 4.4 233.0 203.2 171 220.3
Depreciation: e
Owned fedassets .. 3122 314 04 3918 21 07 2628
Fixed assets held under finance leases 4.4 4.7 - 4? o 50 o 50
316.6 316.1 0.4 316.5 267.1 0.7 267.8
Otheroperating COStS: : :
Auditor's remuneration o R 0.4 0.3 - 0.3 03 .......... - O 3
Research and development o 1.5 26 - 2.6 2t - 2.1

Operating leases:

- hire ¢f plant and mach‘\ner; T
- land and buildings - 5.5
Electricity purchases 653.2 653.2
Costofsalms I e e S a6 s i
Rents and rates ......................... 1 3 69.2
ustomen tabates I I T e e e T T e
Amortisation of intangible assets - 0.4
General, administration and other costs 83 2132
7001  1,180.0
Qther income (note 5) 2.8) 4.2
697.3 1,1758
Net operating costs before exceptional ftems L7181 16639
Exceptional items: e
- Year 2000 costs - - - - 71 24 98
— business restructuring RTY: ' 16.6 . 16.6 215 - 21'.'5

Total net operating costs 179.9 1,1939 977.4 7175 16949

Fees pavable to KPMG Audit Ple and its associates for non-audit services
in 2002 were £0.6 milion (2001 - £0.7 milion; 2000 - £0.4 milion) primarily
relating to due diligence and regulatory work. During the year, KPMG
received no fees for management consultancy. The audit fee for 2002 in
relation to the company amounted to £77,000 {2001 - £75,000).

Employee costs are included above on a gross basis before removing
those components capitalised in connection with the group’s capital
schemes. The adjustments made in the above table for ‘Capital schemes’
are capitalised during the relevant period and included within tangible fixed
asset additions.

information relating to the emoluments, long-term incentives, share
options and pension entitkements of the directors is contained in the report
on remuneration.
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4 PROFIT ON DISPOSAL OF BUSINESSES

2002 2001 2000
£m i £11
Energy supply:
Profit on disposal of business bafore goodwill - 3051 -
Goodwil - 1.0 -
Net profit on disposal of energy supply business - 20441 -
Loss en other business d'i'sposals. T - {12.9) -
Profit on disposal of businesses - 191.2 -
In the year ended 31 March 2001 the group sold its energy supply business 1o TXU Eurcpe for a cash consideration of £310 million.
5 OTHER INCOME
2002 2001 2000
£m £m €m
Profit/loss) on disposal of fixed assets 3.6 {0.5) 0.7
Net rents receivable 6.9 6.3 2.3
Maragorent fees R . 0408 i
Dividend income 08 12D
Other 0.2 0.8 0.1
11.9 8.7 4.2
6 EMPLOYEES
2002 2001 2000
Licensed multi-utility operations 4,368 4,764 5,532
Asset management services 2,076 407 391

Telecommunications 743 618 364
Other activities 130 109 7
Disconti

Brergy SUBRlY T 392
Gther - 25 312

Average number of persons employed by the group during the year

13,893 11,062 10,367

7 NET INTEREST PAYABLE AND OTHER SIMILAR CHARGES

2002 2001 2000
£m £m £m
Interest payable:
GrOUD e e
- on bank loans, overdrafts and cther loans 220.8 205.5 184.6
—onfinance leases e e e 8.0 01 3.1
- finance element of onerous contract provision - 40 15.0
Joint ventures 13.9 11.8 9.9

Total interest payable

Interest receivable

Net interest payable and other simitar charges
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8 TAXATION ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Restated Restated

2002 2001 2000
£m £m £m
Ordinary tax:
Current tax:
UKcorporation taxat 30% - 158 9.7 .
Overseas tax _ - o 04 08 (04
Share of joint ventures' tax 2.4 3.1 1.8
Total ordinary current tax 18.6 13.7 1.4
Deferredtax:
Origination and reversal of timing differences o 828 890 143.4
Increase in discount {59.8) (33.0) (52.4)
Total ordinary deferred tax 23.0 56.0 91.0
Total ordinary tax 41.6 69.7 92.4
Excoptionaltax: e
Current tax; V . . . e e e e L L e e,
Exceptional tax on disposal of businesses o - 45.0 -
beterredtas B
Origination and reversal of timing differences on business disposals - 24.0 -
Total exceptional tax - 69.0 -
Tax ¢n profit on ordinary activities 41.6 138.7 92.4

The table below reconciles the notional tax charge at the UK corporation tax rate for the year to the actual current rate for taxation

Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Disposat of businesses
Net casts not deductible for tax purposes
Actual current tax rate

9 DIVIDENDS

Interim dividend of 15.3 pence {2001 - 15.0 pance; 2000 - 14.7 pence)
Final dividend of 31.7 pence proposed (2001 - 31,1 pence; 2000 ~ 30.5 pence)
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Restated Restated
2002 2001 2000

Baslc earnings per ordinary share 47.9p 62.8p €8.7p
Diluted earnings per ordinary share 47.7p 62.5p 66.3p
Adjusted basic earnings per share: o o ‘ i £m _fm £m
Profit for the frarsial year attributakle to ordinary shareholders - 265.0 3462  867.0
Adquth‘leﬁté: ........... ..........
Discontinued operations e . _ .- tTE 98)
Exceptional items: e S

Sbusinessrestructurng 1n9 66 218
SYSA 200 COSMS e e o+ e <o T T 7.1
Profit on disposal of businesses after taxation ) - . - {1222) -
Kﬁ{ortisaﬁon'c':fmg”éodwill AR [E— SR . o i o
Adjusted profit for financial year attributable to ordinary sharcholders 284.9 227.0 336.5
Adiusted basic earnings per ordinary share 51.5p 41.2p 61.2p
Adjusted diluted earrings par ordinary share 513 410p 0.8
Basic sarnings per ordinary share and the adjusted basic earnings per Diluted earnings per ordinary share and adjusted diluted earnings per

ordinary share have been calculated by dividing profit and the adjusted profit ordinary share have baen calculated by dividing prefit and the adjusted profit
for the financial year attributable to ordinary sharehclders by 553.5 million, for the financial year attributable to ordinary shareholders by 555.2 milion,
being the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year being the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year

(20071 - 551.1 million; 2000 ~ 550.2 million). including dilutive shares (2001 — 553.7 million; 2000 - 553.6 millicn).

The weighted average number of shares can be reconciled to the weighted average number of shares Including dilutive shares as follows:

2002 2001 2000
millian milion millign
Average number of ordinary shares in Issue - basic . i 5535 58511 5802
Average number of ordinary shares under opton N - 100 128 150
MNumber of ordinary shares that would have bsen issued at fair value (8.3) (10.2) (11.6)
Average number of ordinary shares in issue — diluted 555.2 553.7 553.6
11 INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS Ciher
Goodwil  intangibles Total
£m £m £m
At 1 Aprl 2001 and 31 March 2002 84.0 9.0 930
Amortisation: e e e
At 1 Apri 2001 . o 44 - a4
Charge for the year 73 0.1 7.4
At 31 March 2002 11.7 0.1 11.8
Netbook value: .
At 31 March 2002 72.3 89 812
At 31 March 2001 79.6 9.0 B8g.6
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12 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Fidures,
fittings, Assets in
Land and Infrastructure  Operational to0ls and course of
buildings agsets assets  equipment construction Total
Grou £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost:
April 2001

At e 2453 31838 42799 7608 4907 89605
Additions 29 732 486 499 4500 62456
Grants and coniributions e e - 8 - - - @8
Tansters 39 282 469 404 (1174 -
Dispasals (3.1) - [7.3)  {121.5) - {131.9)
AL 24 Warch 2002 2490 3,2786 4,368.1 7206 8233 90,8486
Depreciation: e

AL T April 2001 e 486 9424 11389 4449 - 25748
Charge for the year . o 125 102.2 131.6 70.3 - 3166
Disposals 1.9 - 73 (1147 =233
At 31 March 2002 59.8 1,046 1,263.2 4005 - 2,768.1
NetBookVatwe: o

At 31 March 2002 189.2 2,234.0 3,104.9 3291 8233 6,680.5
At 31 March 2001 1957 22414 31410 3159 4807 63857

Grants and contributions received relating to infrastructure assets have been
deducted from the cost of fixed assets in order to show a true and fair view
{accounting policy note 1(h}). As a consequence, the net book value of fixed
assets is £80.3 million (2001 - £89.1 million) lower than it would have been

had this treatment not been adopted.

Within tangible fixed assets are assets held under finance leases at the following amounts:

Cost:
Cperational assels

Fixiures, ﬁttingé; tools and equipment
At 31 March

Accumulated depreciation:
Operational assets

Fiitdféé; 'ﬁt'tirigs, rocls and eqﬁibmeni .....................................
At 31 March
Net book value:
Operaticnal assets
Fixtures, fittings, tools ana'équipment
At 31 March

Capital commitments:
Contracted but not provided for
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Fixtures, fttings,

tools and eguipment
Company £m
Cost:
At 1 April 2001 and 31 March 2002 4.8
Depreciation:
ATAPAZ001 3.0
Charge for the year 0.7
At 31 March 2002 3.7
NEt bo°k value: ...................................................
At 31 March 2002 1.1
At 31 March 2001 1.8
13 FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Joint ventyres Other investments

Group unhsEg Lo?i;wi T(g:t%l Unﬁstaog Us\gﬂ Tcga;]l T?‘:tr?:
B0t e, S
At 1 April 2001 81.5 9.4 909 185 10.8 29.3 120.2
Additons 125 . 07 B2 o1 78 782
Share of losses 2.3} - (2.3) - - 23
Disposals - 0.9 - 0.9 - 108 (108 @9
Distributions and loan repayments 2.1) (2.0} 4.1} - - - 4.1
Gocdwill amortisation o - 0.7) = - - .7)
Exchange adjustments 41.3) 05  {40.9) - - - a0
At 31 March 2002 48.5 8.6 57.1 18.6 7.8 264 83.5

Included within unlisted joint ventures Is £9.4 million of goodwill principally in
respect of the group’s investment in AS Tallinna Vesi.

The group's investment in IEBA, the Argentinian electricity ulility, which had a
carrying value of approximately £41.3 milion priar to the devaluation of the
Argentine peso, has been extinguished by exchange adjustments. An
exchange adjustment of £7%.3 million in respect of this investment has been
included in the statement of total recognised gatns and losses, This has
resulted in a provision of £38.0 milien being created on the balance shest in

accordance with FRS @ to reflect the group’s share of net liabilities, The
group has ne financial commitment to IEBA beyond the initial investment
made in 1987.

Share of losses comprises share of operating profits £14.0 million, interest
charge £13.9 million, taxation charge £2.4 million.

Included within other investments are the listed investments held by Talbot
Insurance Ltd, which had a market value of £7.8 million at 31 March 2002,

Shares in
subsidiary Other

undertakings  investments Total
Company £m £ m
Cost:
At 1 April 2001 5,819.5 3.9 58234
Decrease arising on group restructuring {253.9} - (253.9)
At 31 March 2002 5,565.6 3.9 5,569.5
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Details of principal operating subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures, all of which are unlisted, are set out below.

These undertakings are included within the consolidated group financial staternents.

Class of shavg
capital hetd

Proportion of share capital  Nature of
owned/voting rights business

Subsidiary undertakings:

Great Britain:

Urmed Utilities Water PLC (formerly North West \Water Limited) Ordinary 100%" Waler and wastewater services and network managernem
United Utilities EIectrlClty PLC tformer! Ordlinary 100%" E\ectrlcny d\StI’IbUtIOn and d services
Vo Communicatons imited ey to0% 7 Telcommuncations
Vertex Data Suence Lirnited o o Ordinary ~ 87.5% Customer management outsourclng
United Utlltlles International Limited N o Grdirary '_ 100%* o Consulttng services and p_r@jéé:{_fnanagemmt ________
United Utilities Green Energy Limited . _ Ordinary  100%" ... Renswable energy services
Un\ted Uilties Industrial Limited Ordinary 100%™ Waler treatment operations
Un|1ed Utilities Prbb'e'r'tl Umnited Ordinary ~ 100% Property and faciliies rnanagement """
United Utilities Operational Services Limited Crdinary 100%* Operalion and maintenance of water and wastewater
.......................................... assets of Dwr Gymru ‘
Umted Utilities Operational Ser\.'[ces {Highland) lelted Ordinary ~ 100%" ‘ Operation and maintenance of wastewater assets
United Ulilities Operational Senvices (Tay) Limited Ordinary 100%* Cperation and maintenance of wastewater assets B
AUStralla ...... e
Urited Utiities Macarthur Operations Pty lelted - Ordinary 100%" o Techmcal and managernem services
Yabulu Water Pty Limited Ordinary 100%" Techrical and management services
Joint ventures:
Great Britain:
Catchment Lirvited e o Ordinary  50%" Contract operations and maintenance services -
Catchment (Tay) Limited Ordinary 33%" Contract operations and maintenance services o
USA: . . .
‘ Ovdinary 50%” Contract pe}faﬂons 2nd meintenance senvices
Argentina: » ‘
Inversora Electnca de Buenos Aires SA Ordinary 45%" Elactricity supply and distributio'h'
Yan Yean Water Pty Limited ] Ordinary 50%" ~ Water treatment operations
Macarthur Water Pty Limited! Crdinary 50%"* Waler treatment operations
Riverland Water Pty Limited o T Ordinary 50%* Water treatrment cperaons
Estonla e 5 L 4 4 e e e e e L T T T TP
AS Tallmna VeS| Ordinary 25.29%" Contract operations and mamtenance semces
Bulgaria: }
Sofiiska Voda A.D. Ordinary 409%* Contract operations and maintenance services

*Shares are held direcily by United Utilities PLC except where marked with
an aster'sk where thay are held by subsidiary undertakings.

14 STOCKS

Afull list of the company’s subsidiary undertakings is included within the
company’s annual return.

Raw materials and finished goods

Work in progress
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15 DEBTORS Group Cormpary
2002 2001 2002 2001
£m £m £m £m

Amounts fafling due within one year:
Trade debtors o 327.6 305.0 - -
Provisions for doubtful debis {70.6} {64.4) - -
. 257.0 2408 - -
Amaunts owed by subsidiary undertakings - -_1,6621 1,350.9
Otherdentors . 168 387 66 77
Prepayments and accrued income 140.8 161.7 3.4 37
414.6 436.0 11,6721 1,3623

Within prepayments and accrued income is £36.9 million which falls due after mere than one year {2001 — £22.2 million),

16 CURBENT ASSET INVESTMENTS Group Cormpany
2002 2001 2002 2001
£m £m £m £m
Managed funds and short-term deposits 3888 382.2 8ed 55.3
Other current asset investments 20.7 231 - 12.3
389.5 405.3 80.4 67.6
17 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR Group Company
2002 2004 2002 2001
£m m £m £m
Loans L . RS AT o T B
Bank overdrafts and temporary borrowings 1649 2623 1423 45,7
Trade creditors U 721 967 T .=
Arnounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 1,520.5 1,153.2
Dividends - 1784 1739 1785 1739
Taxation and social security 2004 1794 26  47.8
Accruals and deferred income 6574 7504 564 646
1,344.2 15384 1,900.3 15478
18 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR Group Company
2002 200 2002 2001
£m £m £m
Loans 3,012.0 26407 7531 7531
Obligations uncer finance leases 200.6 200.6 - -
OUEr CredltOrs e e T 2.9 R "
Deferred grants and contributions {(note 19) 265.6 249.0 - -
34782 30032 753.1 753.1
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19 DEFERRED GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

£m

ALY AprZo0n 2490
Received in the year 24.4
Credit to profit and loss account for the year (?.8)
At 31 March 2002 265.6
Group Company

Share of net
20 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES Deterred ,J’ﬁ?ﬁi‘ﬁ&ﬁ’é

tax Restructuring  (Argentina) Cther Total {ther

£m £m £m £m £m £m

ATApri200 L LLEsn1ss - 158 2818 4.3
Yilised o - 74 (08 102
Profitand loss account 230 8B . R - g31e -
Transfer from investment in joint ventures - - 38.0 - 38.0 -
At 31 March 2002 258.0 8.9 38.0 7.9 3108 4.1
21 DEFERRED TAX ostated  Restated
2002 2001 2000

£m £ £

Accelerated capitel alowances 11069 10188 9451
Short-term timing differences (82.1) (76.8) (116.1)
Undiscounled provision for deferred tax 10248 9420 8200
Discount (768.8) (709.0) (676.0)
Discounted provision for deferred tax 256.0 233.0 153.0

The requirements of FRS 18 Deferred Tax, issued in December 2000, are now effactive for these financlal statements, Accordingly, full provision has been made
tfor dsferred tax assets and liabilities arising from timing differences betwsen the recognition of gains and losses in the financial statements and their recognition
in a tax computation {discounted where material). The effect of FRS 19 is to reduce shareholders’ funds by £256.0 million at 31 March 2002 and to increase
the tax charges in the years ended 31 March 2002 by £23.0 millien, 31 March 2001 by £80.0 milion (including £24.0 million of excepticnal tax on the disposal

of the energy supply business] and 31 March 2000 by £81.0 millicn.

22 BORROWINGS

2002 2001
£m £m
Bank overdrafts and temporary borrowings 1649  262.3
“term loans 3,083.0 2,7?6‘:{}‘
Finance lsases 200.6 200.6
3,448.5 3,239.3

Repayments fall due as folows:
2002 2001
Year £m Year £m
After five years 2008+ 2,614.4 2007+ 2,246.4
From four to five years 2007 56.6 2006 444.4
From three to four years 2006 4488 2005 500
From two to three yea'ré' ........... 2 005 54.4 . 2004 340
From one to two years 2004 384 2003 66.8
After more than ons year 3,212.6 e 2BA1E
Within one year 2003 2359 2002 397.7
3,448.5 3,239.3
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Bank overdrafts and temporary borrowings

The bank averdrafts and temporary borrowings are repayable in tess than ane
year. The weighted average rate of interest on bank overdrafts and temporary
borrowings was 4.8 per cent {2001 - 6,1 per cent). The group had available
committed bank facilities of £1,010.0 milion {2001 - £1,275.0 milion) of
which £986.2 milion was unutilised at 31 March 2002 (2001 - £1,252.3
million). Of the amounts unutilised, £166.0 million expire within one year,
£244.4 million expire after one year but in less than two years, and the
remaining £575.8 milion expire in mora than two years.

Term loans

Amounts repayable after more than five years comprise bank and cther loans
repayable between 2008 and 2053. Interest rates range from 4.8765 per cent
to 14.83 per cent on £2,386.0 million (2001 - £2,063.4 million} and are at
fleating rates on £228.4 million 2001 - £183.C miliion).

On total borrowings, interest rates range from 0.75 per cent to 14,83 per
cent on £2,907.4 milion and are at ficating rates on €541 .1 million,

. Weighted average Weighted average
. interest rate at which perivd for which
The analysis of net debt prior to the effect of off balance sheet instruments is as follows: Borrowings at 31 March borrowings are fixed interest s fixed
2002 2004 2002 2001 2002 200
£m £m % % Years Years
Fixed rate borrowings: . o - B .
Sterling . 978.8 6562 82 80 16.6 14.0
United States dollars 7530 7531 6.5 64 118 128
Euros 10918 1,225 59 80 60 68
Japanese yen 84.0 60.6 3.6 1.5 19.2 25.0
2,9074 25924 6.7 8.7 11.3 10.8
Floating rate borrowings:
Sterfng 4845 5430
Jepanesoyen 123 123
United States doflars 44.3 86.6
541.1 646.9

Floating rate investments:

Sterljﬁél(ihéluding cash)

(387.7)  (432.9)

Net debt at 31 March

3,060.8 2,806.4

Included in the above table is a loan with Japanese yen principal paying
a United States dollar coupon.

The fair values of the group’s financial instruments are shown on page 61.

Company

Excluding amounts cwed to subsidiary undertakings, the company

has borrowings totalling £895.4 milien (2001 - £861.4 million} of which
£142.3 million falls due within one year. The remaining loans totalling
£753.1 milion comprise £212.1 millon repayable in 2005, £298.6 million
repayable in 2008 and £242.4 million repayable in 2028,

The loan repayable in 2005 is at a fixed rate of interest of 6.25 per cent,
and th& loan repayable in 2008 is at a fixed rate of interest of 6.45 per cent.
The loan repayable in 2028 is at a fixed rate of interest of 8,875 per cent.

Weighted average Weighted average
interest rate at which period tor which
Taking into account off balance sheet instruments, net debt can be analysed as follows: Borrowings at 31 March bomowings are fxed interest is fixed
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
£m £m Yo % Yoars Years
Fixed rate BOmOWINgS: o i
Sterfing e 25695 23450 74 75 85 68
United States dollars - 42,2 - 8.2 - 0.5
25695 2,387.2 7.4 7.5 5.5 6.6
Floating rate borrowings:
S'iéflir'ig" ; i e i e e G
Floating rate investments:
Sterling (including cash) (@ar.7) s

Net debt at 31 March

3,060.8 2,806.4

Floating intersst rates are based on LIBOR.
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary financial risks faced by the group are interest rate risk and
exchange rate risk.

The board has reviewed and agreed policies for managing each of these
risks as summarised below. The board has also approved all of the classes
of financial Instruments used by the group. The group's treasury function,
which is authorised 1o conduct the day-to-day treasury activities of the
group, reparts at least annually 1o the board.

The group uses a variety of financial instruments, including derivatives, to
raise finance for its operations and to manage the risks arising from those
operations.

The group borrows in the major global debt markets in a range of currencies
at both fixed and floating rates of interest, using derivatives where
appropriate to generate the desired effective currency prefile and interest
basis. The effect of the use of derivatives is illustrated In note 22.

Under an interest rate swap, the group agrees with another party to
exchange at specific intervals the difference between fixed rate and floating
rate interest amounts calculatsd by reference to an agreed notional principal
amount. The notional principal of these instruments reflects the extent of the
groupy's invateement in the instruments, but doss not represent its axposure
to credit risik which is assessed by reference to the fair value.

Under a currency swap, the group agrees with &nother party to exchange the
principal amount of twa currencles together with interest amounts in the two
currencies agreed by reference to a specific interest rate basis and the
principal amount. The principal of these instruments reflects the extent of the
group's involvement in the instruments, but does nat represent its exposure
1o credit risk which is assessed by reforence to the fair value.

All transactions are undertaken te manage the risks arising from underlying
husiness activiies and no speculaltive trading is undertaken. The counterparties
to these Instruments generally consist of financial institutions and other
bodies with goed credit ratings. Although the group is potentially exposed to
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credit loss in the event of non-performance by counterparties, such cradit
risk Is controlled through credit rating reviews of the counterparties and by
limiting the total amount of eéxposure to any one party. The groug doss not
believe it is exposed to any material concentrations of credit risk.

As noted above, the group uses derivatives to manage its exposure to
currency risk on its borrowings. Subsidiary undertakings make no significant
sales or purchases in currenciss other than that of the country in which they
opsrata. Accordingly, the group has ne material unhedged foreign currency
exposures.

Financial instruments utiised by the group can be summarised as follows:

Interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps are used solely to manage floating rate borrowings in
ordsr to reduce the financial risk to the group from potential future changes
in madium-term interest rates.

Financial futures
Financial futures are used to manage the group’s exposure to possible future
changes in short-term interest rates.

Forward contracts

The group generally hedges foreign exchange transaction exposures up

to one year forward, Hedges are put in place using forward contracts at the
time that the forecast exposure becomes reasonably certan.

Currency swaps
The group uses currency swaps to hedge currancy exposure where debt
is raised in one currency to fund in a different currency.




»

Fair values of financial instruments

Fair value estimates ars made at a specific paint in time, based on relevant market information and information about the financial instrument. These estimates
are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgemerit and therefore cannot be determined precisely. Changes in assumptions

cauld significantly affect the estimatas.

2002 2001
Current Current
Book value value Book value value
At 31 March £m £m £m £m
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt 2359 2359 3977 3977
Long-term debt 3,2126 3,3836 28416 30564
RO 34485 38195 052393 34541
Interest rate swaps - - 873 -
Foreign exchange cortracts and swaps -~  (93.8) -
Total borrowings 34485 3,613.2 3,239.3

Fair values have been estimated using the following methods and
assumptions:

Long-term investments

The fair value of listed investments of £7.8 millien is based on year end
quoted market prices. For other investments for which there are no quoted
market prices, the fair values approximate to the carrying value of

£75.7 mikion.

Current assots and liabilities

Financial instruments inclucded within current assets and liabilities {excluding
cash and borrowings) are generally short term in nature and accordingly their
fair values approximate to their book values,

Long-term receivables and liabilities

The fair values of financial instruments included within long-term receivables
and liabilties {excluding borrowings) are based on discounted cash flows
using appropriate market interest rates,

Net borrowings and non-equily interests (excluding foreign

exchange contracts)

The carmying values of cash and short-term bomrowings and current asset
investments approximate to their fair values because of the short-term
rmaturity of these instruments. The fair value of quoted long-term borrowings
and guaranteed preferred securities is based on year end mid-market quoted
prices. The fair valug of other long-term borrowings Is estimated by
discounting the future cash flows to net present values using appropriate
market interest rates prevalling at the year end.

Cutrency and interest rate swaps
The group enters into currency and interest rate swaps in order to manage
its foreign currency and interest rate exposurss.

The fair value of these financial instruments was estimated by discounting
the future cash flows to net present values using appropriate market interest
rates prevailing at the year end. The carrving and fair values of currency

and interest rate swaps include the related accrued interest receivables

and payables.

Hedges

Unrecognised gains and losses on financial assets and liabilties for
which hedge accounting has been used at the balance sheet date were
£191.7 miilion and £185.4 million respectively (2001 ~ £216.4 million and
£179.2 million}.

The group anticipates that £42.7 milion of these gains and £47.8 milion

of these losses will be realised in the forthcoming financial year. Of the
unrecognised gains and losses on hedges as at 1 April 2001 the net ipss
recognised in the profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March 2002
was £13.8 milfion.
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24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
The movements in shareholders’ equity as restated are as follows:

Croup and company Group GCompany
Calied up Share Proft Proft
snare Premiarm and 10ss and oss Ofirer
capital actount acoount Total acoount reserves Total
£m £m £m £ £m £ £m
At 31 March 1999 o 549.9 6421 1,11341 ”2,305‘1 1.6]0.8 - 280238
Prior year adjustment for deferred tax T - B2 g0 - T -
Restated profit for financial year - - 3670 3670 28341 =.....28341
Dividends on orcinary snares L. 4B®) (2488 (288 - (88
Shares issued net of costs 06 3.0 = 3.6 - - 3B
Exchange adjustments - - {0.5) (0.5} - - -
AITMarch2000 5505 6451 11688 23644 16451 - 28407
Restated profit/{loss) for financial year - - 346.2 (184.4) 2,544.8 2,350.4
Dividends onordnaryshares - - 25 - (2549)
Shares issued net of costs 2.4 1.5 - - 13.9
Capitalisation of reserves in respect of shares issued via QUEST - - - - -
Goodwill on business disposals ' - - - 1010 - - ~
Unrealised gain on sale of minoﬁty interest in Vertex Dafé. Science Limited - - - - -
Exchange adjustments - - - - -
At 31 March 2001 £52.9 656.6 1,186.8 2,544.8 4,850.1
Profit/lloss) for financial year - - ! 4.0 - (240
Dividends on orcinary shares - - (260.9) (260.9) (260.9) - {260.9)
Shares ssued nel ofcosts o a0 s - dso - o o
Capitalisation of reserves in respect of shares issued vie QUEST - - (5.0) {5.0) - - -
Cumency transiation adjustment on equity investment in Argentina - - mey ey - SR -
Exchange adjustments - - 1.0 1.0 - - -
At 31 March 2002 555.9 6716 13088 2,536.3 9109 2,544.8 4,683.2

Underiying clividends per ordinary share are 47.0 pence {recommended)
in 2002, 46.1 pence in 2001 and 45.2 pence in 2000.

As allowed by section 230{4} of the Companies Act 1985, the company has
not presented its own profit and foss account, The amount of group loss for
the financial year dealt with in the company’s profit and loss accourt is
£224.0 million (2001 - £194.4 million loss; 2000 - £:283.1 millicn profit) after
accounting for dividends receivable from subsidiary undertakings of

£6.9 million {2001 - £23.1 million; 2000 - £331.5 millign).

The cumulative amount of goodwill included in reserves resulting from
acquisitions during the years ended 2002, 2001, 2000 and prior vears, before
FRS 10 became effective, nat of goodwill attributable te subsidiaries or
businesses demerged or disposed of prior to 31 March 2002, amounts

1o £21,023.9 milion {2001 - £1,023.9 million; 2000 - £1,124.9 milion). The
cumulative amount of negative goodwill included in the reserves is Enil at

31 March 2002 (2001 - £nil; 2000 - £nil). Consolidated retained earnings at
31 March 2002 include retained losses of joint ventures and assoclated
undertakings of £9.6 milion (2001 - £7.3 million; 2000 - £2.9 milion). Tha
cumulative amount of exchange adjustments included within consolidated

retained sarmings is £(11.2) milion (2001 - £{12.2} milion; 2000 - £{6.2) million).

A prior year adjustment of £233.0 million for deferred tax has been made
against the group profit and loss account reserve balance at 31 March 2001
of £1,620.1 million, along with £0.9 million refated to deferred tax in respect
of the Cap Gemini Ernst & Young transaction as detailed in note 31.

Apart from dividends from United Utilitiss Water PLC and United Utilities
Electricity PLC, which are subject to ceriain regulatory restrictions, there ars
no significant statutory or contractual restrictions on the distribution of
current profits of subsidiary ar associated undertakings; undisiributed profits
of prior years are, in the main, permanently employed in the businesses of
these undertakings, The undistributed profits of group undertakings overseas
may be liable to overseas taxes and/or UK taxation (after allewing for double
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taxation relief) it they were to ba distributed &5 dividends. No provision has
been made in respect of potential taxation liabllities on realisation of assets at
restated or revalued amounts or on realisation of joint ventures and
associated undsrtakings at equity accounted value.

The autherised ordinary share capital of the company was 800,000,000
ordinary shares of £1 each. The allotted and fully paid share capital of the
cormpany at 31 March 2002 was 555,942,338 ordinary shares (552,901,025
ordinary shares at 31 March 2001; 550,511,886 ordinary shares at 31 March
2000},

3,041,313 ordinary shaves were allotted during the year ended 31 March
2002 (2001 - 2,389,139 ordinary shares; 2000 — 642,760 ordinary shares)
for the exercise of oplions in accordance with the rules of the employee
sharesave schemes and the executive share option scheme for a total
consideration of £18.0 million (2001 - £13.9 milicn; 2000 - £3.6 million).

Since 31 March 2002, 49,150 shares have been allotted on the exercise
of options and at 31 May 2002, the company’s issued share capital, credited
as fully paid, was £555,991,488.

During the year ended 31 March 2001, an internal restructuring resulted in a
profit of £2,544.8 milion in the company’s accounts. This profit, as it arose on
an internal restructuring, is not distributable and is shown within other
reserves. The restructuring has had no effect on the group accounts, Certain
assets of a subsidiary, United Utilities Electricity PLC, were transferred to
other subsidiaries of the company. Undar the Companies Acts this transfer
would have required the company to recognise an impairment in the camying
value of United Vhilities Eleciricity PLC and & reduction in the profit and loss
account by that amount. As the transfer did not result in any overall loss In
value of the company's investments, in order to show a true and fair view, it is
necessary to depart from the Act and reallocate an amount from the cost of
investment in United Utilities Electricity PLC to other subsidiaries, There is no
effect on the group accounts.




The employee shargsave scheme is available to all eligible employees and
the company share option scheme Is for senior executives (excluding, with
effect from the introduction of the group’s incentive plan, executive directors
and other executives participating in the plan). The former is based on SAYE
savings contracts with options exercisable within a six-month period from the
conclusion of a threg, five or seven-vear period as appropriate from the date
of grant. Under the terms and conditions of this scheme, Tor every month

fup to o more than six months) an employes falls to contribute the agreed

monthly amount determined under the rules of the scheme, the last date
exercisable will be delayed by one month. Options under the latter scheme
arg exercisable in a period beginning no earlier than three years (five years for
discounted options under the former executive share option schemsa, which
are no longer granted) and ending no later than ten years from the date cf
grant. Dstails of the criteria for exercising these aptions is shown in the repont
on remuneration. Oplions outstanding under the share option schemes at

31 March, together with their exercise prices and dales, were:

Exercise MNormal dates
2002 2001 price of exercise
Employes sharesave scheme = 20139 440.6p (1) 1890 or 2001
............................. 7848 159445 4048p(1) 2000 or 2002
- 109,034 a81.0p 1} 2001
....................... Lseqao 2478861 4780p{n 2002
77777 682,778 1,039,624 B165p(1) 2001 or 2008
391,203 485,837 7075p (1) 2002 or 2004
_____ 3,841,976 4471965  4715p(1) 2003 or 2005
1,678,910 2,057,825 5565p (1) 2004 or 2008
b 1,971,047 o 5000p (1} 2005 or 2007
Exeoutive share option scheme | T 15571 324.0p 3 1995 to 2002
_____________________________________________________ - 27901 2757p (@) 1997 to 2002
.... 2,713 2,713 392.7p (3) 1995 to 2002
904 3,810 334.2p (2} 1997 1o 2002
12,078 23826 4634p(3) 199610 2003
18,038 29,402 394.2p (2) 1998 to 2003
....................... o R e
7,942 12,655 380.2p (2} 1998 to 2003
_____________ 12018 158700 566.9p(3) 1997 to 2004
.Be2e2 88,922 .482.2p(2) 198910 2004
38,912 47,826 63C.1p (3} 1997 to 2004
""" 32,617 37480 4508p(2) 199910 2004
45,518 75,163 479.8p (3) 1997 to 2004
...... gt eme " soamty 10001 soos
56,155 56,155 564.0p (3 1998 to 2005
"""" 21,952 21,262 4798p (2) 2000 to 2005
............................ 151,450 L 78850  SB4Sp (3 | 1998 to 2008
178,448 230,502  5445p () 1999 10 2006

328,909 331,409 628.0p(3) 200010

169,500 182,500 6320p (3) 200016
562,249 562,499 768.5p (3) 200010 2007
155,750 185,750 886.0p (33 2001 10 2008
310,250 310,250 868.0p (3) 2001 to 2008
968,451 968,451 768.0p(3) 2002 to 2009
Comhi{n‘){ughare aption scheme ' 402,728 ' '402,728 615.5;5".('5) 2002 to 2009
1,005,569 1,005,560 880.0p (3} 2003 to 2010
527,203 527,203 €66.0p(3) 2008 to 2010
______ 983,462 - 65200 (3) 2004 10 2071
542,814 - 580.0p (3] 2005 to 2012

15,432,424 16,360,421

1) The exercise price represents 80 per cent of the market price as at the
date the option was granted.

(2) The exercise price represents 85 per cent of the market price as at the
date the option was granted.

{3} The exercise price equalled the market price at the date the aption

was granted,

United Utilities PLC  Annual Report & Accounts 2002 63




An opportunity to join the smployee sharesave scheme was offered during
the years ended 31 March 2002 and 31 March 2001, and opticns were alsa
granted under the executive share oplion scheme {and overseas executive
share option scheme) and the company share option scheme. In the year
ended 31 March 2002, options were granted under the oplion schemes in
respect of a total of 3,538,123 ordinary shares (2001 ~ 3,636,897 ordinary
shares), options for 3,079,711 ordinary shares (2001 - 2,179,862 ordinary
shares) ware exercised and aptions for 1,386,408 ordinary shares (2001 -
1,899,714 ordinary shares) lapsed or were cancelled.

United Utlities established a Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust
QUEST in 1998, an employee benefit trust complying with requirements of
the Finance Act 1289, The QUEST trustes assurmned the obligation 1o satisfy

25 PENSIONS

The group participates In a number of pension schemes principally in the UK.

The major schemes are funded defined benefit schemes — the United Utilities
Fension Scheme [UUPS) and the Blectricity Supply Pension Scheme (ESPS)
{the ‘Schemes’), of which the ESPS is closed to new employees, UUPS also
includes a defined contribution section which constitutes less than 0.5% of
the total asset value. The assels of these Schemes are held in trust funds
independent of group finances.

For UUPS and ESPS, the pension cost under the accounting standard
SSAP 24 have been assessed in accordance with the advice of a firm of
actuaries, Mercer Hurman Rescurce Consulting, using the projected unit
method. For this purpose, the actuatial assumptions adgpted are based
upon investment growth of 6.0 per cent par annum, pay growth of 4.0 per
cent per annum and increases to pensions in payment and deferred
pensions of 2,5 per cent per annum. The actuarial value of the assets was
taken as the market value of the assets.

The last actuarial valuations of the two Schemes were carried out as at

31 March 2001. The combined market value of the group's share of the
assets of the twe Schemes at the valuation date was £1,833.0 million. Using
the assumptions adopted for SSAP 24 the combined actuarial value of the
assets represented 113 per cent of the value of the accrued benefits after
allowing for expected future earmings increases. In deriving the pension cost
under SSAP 24, the surplus in the Schemes is being spread over the fulure
working lifetime of the existing members,
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options granted under the existing United Utilitles' sharesave schems. It is
intended that the QUEST wil satisfy alt future grants under the continuing
United Wtilitles” sharesave scheme. All finance costs and administration
expenses cennected with the operalion of the QUEST are written off to the
proft and loss account as they accrue. The number of shares held in the
QUEST at 31 March 2002 was 863,538 with a market value of £5,276,217
based on the mid-market price of a share at that date of 611.0 pence. All
dividends have been waived in accordance with tha trust deed between
United Utilities PLC and United Utilities QUEST Trustee Limited as trustee, Al
shares held in the QUEST, subject to the trustee’s discretion, are used to
satisfy options granted to employees of the group under sharesave schemes.
The QUEST is not leveraged.,

For UUPS, the emplover's contributions have been assessed in accordance
with the advice of Mercer Human Resource Consulting using different
assumptions 1o those described above, For ESPS, the employer's
contributions have been assessed in accordance with the advice of & firm of
actuaries, Bacon and Woodrew, using different assumptions and methads to
those destribed above.

The group also operates a series of unfunded, unapproved retirement benefit
schemes. The cost of the unfunded, unapproved retirement benefit schemes
is included in the total pension cost, on a basis consistent with SSAP 24
and the assumptions set out above. In accordance with these unfunded
arrangements, the group has made payments 1o former directors, including
lump sum payments, of £205,946 in total in the year ended 31 March 2002
(2001 — £231,388; 2000 - £267,632). The total pension cost for the period
was £5.0 million {2001 - £6.7 million; 2000 - £5.8 milion). A prepayment of
£36.9 million is Included in the balance sheet at 31 March 2002 (2001 -
£22.2 million). Informaticn about the pension arrangements for executive
directors is contained in the report on remuneration.




FRS 17 Transitional Disclosures

The pension cost figures used in these accounts comply with the current
pensicn cost agoounting standard SSAP24. A new pension cost accounting
standard, FRS 17, must be used for the figures that will be shown in the
accounts for the year ending 31 March 2004 and subsequent years. Under
ransitional arrangements, the group is required to disciose the following
information and the figures that would have been shown under FRS 17 in the
current balance shast.

The latest formal valuations of the Schemes were carried out as at 31 March
2001, The valuaticn of liabilties detailed below has been derived by
projecting forward the position at 31 March 2001 and has been performed
by an independent actuary, Mercer Human Resource Consulting. FRS 17
gives the present value of pension lisbifties by discourting pension
commitrments (including an allowance for salary growth), at an AA corporate
bond yield. The major financial assumptions used by the actuary were as
follows:

At 31 March

2002

Discount rate 6.00%
Ponsionable salaly growtn 4.30%
Pension increases 2:80%
Prica inflation 2.80%

The assets and liabilities of the Schemes, along with the expected rates of return on the Schemes' assets as at 31 March 2002 were as follows:

At 31 March 2002

Expected

rate of Total

return £m
S e e s e e e . B25% 11375
Property 8.256% 735
Boncs 6.00%  233.0
Gilts 5.25% 3025
Other 5.25% 28.3
Market value of assets 1,?7478
Prosent value of Schemes’ liabilities (1,753.2)
Net surplus in the Schemes 216
Related deferred tax liability (6.5)
Net pension asset 15.1

If the above amounts had been recognised in the financial statements, the group’s net assets and profit and loss reserve as at 31 March 2002 and 31 March

2001 would be as follows:

2002 2001
£m £m

2,551.6 2611.1
258 (155

Pension asset

54 48
15.1 142.4

Net assets including pension asset

2,546.2 2,742.8

Profit and loss reserve excluding pension asset

1,308.8 1,388.0

85AP 24 prepaﬁfmen;, net of deferred tax
Aceruals for unfunded scheme

258 (155
5.4 46

Pension assst

15.1 142.4

Profit and loss reserve including pension asset

1,303.5 1,519.5

Cver the year to 31 March 2002 the group contributed to UUPS at 11.6% of
pansionable saiaries. From 1 April 2002 the company contribution rate was
changed and now varies by benefit category. The current rates range from
12.8% to 25.5% of pensionable salaries. In addition, further contributions are

made to cover the cost of addilional severance benefits granted. No
cempany contributions are paid to ESPS, Member contributions to ESPS are
currently reduced from their normal rates, by 2.5% of pensionable salaries.
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26 LEASE COMMITMENTS
Subsidiary undertakings are committed to making the following payments under operating leases:

31 March 2002 31 March 2001
Landand  Plant and Land and Plant and
buidings  machinery buldings  machinery
£m £m £m m
Leaseswhichexpie: e,
Within one year o1 . BB o8
Between two and five years 22 &7 4.2
After five years 9.9 - -
12.2 75 4.3
Minimum future lease payments under finance leases and minimum rental commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases of property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2002 were as follows:
Finange  Operating
leases leases
£m £m
2008 e - 6.8
2004 26 62
2005 48 5.5
2006 64 44
2007 121 4.1
Thereatter 1749 1825
Jotal 200.6 208.5

27 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The company guararteed certain loans and overdrafts of group undertakings up
10 & maximum amount of £508.4 million {2001 - £572.9 million), including
£505.8 million {2001 - £486.5 millon) relating to United Utilities Water
PLC's loans from Eurcpean investment Bank,

28 RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO OPERATING CASHFLOWS

The company and certain of s subsidiary undertakings have entered into
perforrmance bonds in the ordinary course of business.

2002 2001 2000

£m £m £m

Group operaling profit L 5248 5037 861.4
Exceptional charges within operating profit 11.8 16.6 31.0
Operating profit before exceptional charges 536.7 520.3 692.4
Depreciation 3166 3165 2678
Amortisation of goodwil and intangible assets 81 40 04
(Profiti/loss on disposal of tangible fixed aggets .~ (3.6) 0.5 0.7}
Stocks decreaseffincrease) A ' 6.1 ' '("0.6)
Debtors decrease/fincrease) 34 (65.8) 6.2
Crediors (decreasefincrease .. @s51) 738 @9
Qutfiow related to exceptional items {17.0) (0.8) (39.9)
802,2 842.5 884.3
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29 RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE

2002 20 2000
£m £m £m
Interest received ) 2a 12 3.7
Interest paid on bark loans, overdrafts and other loans {227 (181.2) (183.)
Interest paid on finance leases (8.0) {10.1) (12.2)
(223.7} (190.1) (191.8)
30 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCIAL INVESTMENT
2002 2001 2000
£m £m £m
Purchase of tangible fixed assels, net of grants and contributigns {590.6) (593.7) [(B60.9)
Sale of tangible fixed assets 122 32.2 6.9
Purchase of intangible fixed assets - .0 -
Purchase of fixed asset investments {20.4) (6.6) (5.3)
Sale of fixed .as.s.et investments ather than joint ventures 128 ' 34 22 .'3
(586.0) (573.7) (B37.0)
31 ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
Acquisitions Disposals
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
£m £m 2l £m £em £m
Fixed assets I - 7.8 LT..1280 —
Net current (iabilities)/assets @8 @7 08 @0 569 -
Provisions for fiabilities and charges - 0.1 - - {17119 -
Fair value of net assets acquired/book value of net assets disposed 28) (960 84  (7.0) 50
Costofdispasal - 15.3 <
Goodwill acquired/written back on disposal - (25.2) (12.3) - 101.0 -
Consideration of uncertakings acquired @8 (12123 @00 _
Profit on disposals - 191.2 -
(28) ) (121.2) (20.7} (7.0} 312,_5 -
LBSS' ................. [
- Cash included in undertakings acquired/disposed - 01 - - - -
- Deferred consideration ' - 4.0 - - - -
Cash consideration 28 Mrm 20.7) 7O 3125 -
Comprising:
-Quitowyinfow arisingon:
— current year's acquisitions/disposals - (115.7) @2 = 3125 -
- pravious year’s acquisitions/disposals @8 (1.4 - {7.0) - -
28 M7 207 7.0 3125 -

On 31 March 2001 the group acquired the business process outsourcing

business of Cap Gemini Emst & Young, the consideration for the acquisition
consisted of a maximum 15% interast in a subsidiary, Vertex Data Science

Limited depending on the size of the business transferred and the

achievement of certain business performance objectives over the following

three years. The transactions did not affect group cashflow. The gain

resulting from the exchange cf assets was reflected in the Staternent of total
recognised gains and losses. A put option was granted to Cap Gemini Ernst
& Young in respect of the shareholding in Vertex Data Science Limited and
Cap Gemini Ernst & Young granted a call option to the group over the same
shareholding. The put and call opticns may be exercised, subject to certain
conditions, in the pericd July 2003 to June 2005,
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32 MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESOURCES

2002 2001 2000
£m tm Em
Decrease/{increass) in bank deposits, certificates of depesit and managed funds 134 (328.7) 3.1}
33 FINANCING
Financing — shares Financing - dett Total
Share Share other than Finance
capifat premium Total Loans  overdrafts leases Totas
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
AL 1 April 1999 649.9)  (Baz) (1,1920) 20633 (@145 {201.7) [2580.1)
Exchange adjustments - - - 0.1 - - 0.1)
Financing: . . I _ .
-~ New finance 10.6) {3.00 36 ([©7.8 (3258 - {4234) (427.0)
- Finance repaid - - - 1073 - 1.6 1089 1089
Cash flow {0.6) {3.0) (3.6) 95 (325.6) 1.6 (31450 (318.1)
At 1 April 2000 (650.5) (B46.1) (1,195.6) (2,054.5) (540.1) (200.1) (2,894.7) (4,000.3)
Exchange adjustments - - - {5.5) 0.2 - 5.3 {5.3}
Financing: e e -
-Newfinance L4 (18 uag ey - - 83 77)
~ Finance repaid - - - 47.4  398.8 (C.5) 4457 4457
Cash flow (2.4} {11.8) 113.9) {716.4} 39888 0.5 (318.1) (332.0)
At Apri2o0t L 652.9)  (656.6) (12095 (2776.4) (241.1)  (200.6) (3,216.1) (4,4276)
Exchange adjustments - - - 1.2 - - 1.2 1.2
Finaneing: R e R
“Newfnance @0) (150 (180 @434 - - (4434 @81
- Finance vepaid - - - 1358 108.7 - 241.3 2413
Cash flow 3.0y (50 (180 (307.8) 1057 - [@202.1) (2201}
At 31 March 2002 (555.9) {871.8) (1,227.5) {3,083.0) (135.4) (200.6) (3,419.0) (4,646.5)
Repayment Rate Amount
dates Currency % £m
Loans repaid European Investment Bank i, various £ . various 29.7
© Netherlands guiderlan 19 December € 941 426
US dollar loan 27 September ‘ 3 floating 42,3
 Sterling loan  24duy € 1625 200
Local authority various i various 1.0
135.6
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34 ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT

Current asset
Cash Financing - delyt  investments Net debt
Loans oot B0
Due after  Due within  other than Finance
one year oneyear  overdrafts leases Tetal
£m £€m £m £m £m £rm £m £m
At 31 March 1999 1922 (1.956.6)  (107.3) @8145) (2017) 2560.1) 504 (2387.5)
Exchange adjustments ) - - - 0.1) - ©.1)
Cash flow (137.4)  ©7.8) 107.3 (3256 16 (3145 31 (4488
Other non-cash changes - 52.3 162.3) - - - _ -
At3iMarch2000 48 (20022 {523 (6401} (200.1) (28947) 535 (2.636.9
Exchange adjustments 0.9 - 5.9 0.2 - 5.3) - 6.2)
Cash flow 256  {638.5) (77.9) 3988 ©£  3181) 3287 36.2
ALSTMarch2001 T 205 (28407) (1357) (2411) (2008) (3218.1) 3822 (28064)
Exchange adjustments 0.1 12 - - - 12 - 13
Cash flow (40.2) (372.5) 64.7 106.7 - 202.1) {13.4) (255.?)
At 31 March 2002 (10.6) (3,012.0) {r1.0) (135.4)  (200.8) (3,419.0) 368.8 (3,060.8)
Cash
. {at bank and
Cash and short-term borrowings Cash at bank Short-term bomowings  Mettotal  overdraftg)
Overdrafts Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 March 1959 1648 (226) (3145 (@37.1) (1723) 1422
Cash flow (134.3) 3.1  (325.6) (328.7) (463.0} (137.4)
At 31 March 2000 305  (257) (840.1) (665.8) (635.3) 48
Bxchango adustrents 09 - 02 02 @n (09
Cash flow 211 4.5 398.8 403.3 424.4 25.6
At31March2001 507 2120 @411 (282.3)  (211.6) 29.5
Exchange adjustments ' 0.1 - - - 01 oa
Cash flow 131.9) 8.3) 105.7 97.4 65.5 40.2)
At 31 March 2002 18.9 (29.5)  (1854) (164.9) (1460} (10.8}

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no material related party transactions during the year.
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32 MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESQURCES

2002 2001 2000
£m m £
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits, certificates of deposit and managed funds 134 (328.7) {3.1)
33 FINANCING
Financing - shares Financing — dett Total
O amomny Sostem
Shawe Share other than Finance
capital prerim Tetel Loang ouerdrefts leases Total

£m £€m m £m £m £m £m £m
AL Apri 1999 5499) _(642.7) (11920} [2.0639) @145 _(201.7) [25801) B7721)
Exchange adjustments - - - {0.1) - - 0.1 o1
Financing: o o e
- New finance {0.6) 3.0 6 (97.8) (3258 -~ {423.4) (427.0}
- Finance repaid - - - 107.3 - 1.8 108.9 108.9
Cash flow 10.8) 3.0 (3.6) 9.5 (325.6) 1.6 {314.5) (318.1)
At1Apn|2000 (5505) (645.1) (1,195.6) (2,084.5) (640.1) (200.1) (2,884.7) (4,090.3)
Exchange adjustments - - - 5.5) 0.2 - 5.3) 5.3
— New finance 2.4 111.5) (13.9) (7638} - - lresg (@
- Finance repaid - - - 47.4  398.8 0.5) 4457 4457
Cash flow [2.4) {11.5) 13.9) {716.4 398.8 s 3181 (33200
ALT Apri2001 (552.9; (B56.6) (1,209.5) (2,776.4) (241.1) (200.6) (3,218.%) (4,427.6)
Exchange adjustments - - - 1.2 - - 1.2 1.2

Financing: e e
— New finance (30) (15.0} (18.0) (443.4) - - (443.4) {4671.4)
- Finance repaid - - - 1356 1058.7 - 241.3 2413
Cash flow (3.00 (1500 {180} (307.8) 1057 - {2021y (220.1)
At 31 March 2002 (555.9) (671.8) (1,227.5) (3,083.0) (135.4) (200.6) (3,419.0) [(4,646.5)
Repayment Rate Amount
dares Currercy % £m
_ European Investment Bank ‘ various £ various 29.7
Netherlands guilder loan 19 Becember € 1. 42.6
USdolerioan .27 September  $ foating 423
Sterling ioan 24 July £ 11.625 20.0
Lacal -a.L;t}'-l.ority various £ various 1.0
135.6
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34 ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT

Current asset
Cash Financing - debt  investments Net debt
Short-term
e 1O horouings
Due after  Due within - other than Finance
OnE year oheyem  Ouercralis \e3TES Totatl
£m £m £m £m £Em £Em £m £
At 31 March 1999 142.2 (1,956.8) (107.3) _ (314.5) ({201.7) (2.580.1) 50.4 (2,387.5)
Exchange adjusiments I 1)) T L SR 1) SO 3.
Cashflow (374 @78 107.3  (325.8) 16 3145 31 (448.8)
Other non-cash changes - 52.3 (52.3) - - - - -
At 31 March 2000_ 4.8 (2,002.2) £2.3) _(6_40.1) (200.1) (2,894.7) ] 53.5 (2,8_36.4)
Excrange adjusiments O 1<) N N o) O Y -1
Cash flow 25.6 638.5) 77.9 398.8 5 (318.1) 328.7 36,2
A3 Marcn 2007 B 205 [26407) (1357) (241.1) (2006 (821871) 3622 (2806.4)
Exchange acjustments oo S e R LI
Cash flow (40.2) (372.5) 64.7 106.7 - (202.1} 13.4) (255.7)
At 31 March 2002 (10.5) (3,012.00 71.00) (1354) (2006} (3.419.0) 368.8 (3,060.8)
Cash
{at bank and
Cash and short-term borrowings Cash at bank Short-term borowings  MNettotal  gverdratts)
Overdrafts Cther Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At31March 1999 648 @26 Bi45)  [B37T) (723 1422
Cash flow {134.3) {3.1) (325.8) (328.7) (463.0) (137.4)
At 31 "March 2000 o 30.7? (25.7) (640.1)7.” (665.5)7 ) (6353) 4.8
Exchange sdjustments 09 ..z .82 02 on 09
Cash flow 21.1 4.5 398.8 403.3 424.4 25.6
At 31 March 20(_)_1_ - 50.7 _(21 .2) ] ___(24‘1.1) ) _(2_82.3) ) (211.6) 29.5
Exchange adjustments e O -3 S
Cash flow 131.9) {8.3) 105.7 97.4 86.5 {40.2)
At 31 March 2002 18.9 (29.5) (1354) [164.9) (146.0) (10.8)

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Tnere were no material related party transactions during the year.
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36 SUMMARY OF DIFFERENCES BETWEEN UK AND US
GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRICIPLES

The group’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles in the United Kingdom (UK
GAAP), which differ in certain respects from generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States (US GAAP). Differences which have a
significant effect on the consclidated net income and shargholders’ equity
of the group are set cut below.

(a}) Pensions

Under UK and US GAAP, pensions costs are determined on a systematic
basis over the langth of service of employses. US GAAP is mare prescriptive
in the application of the actuarial methed, actuarial assumptions to be
applied in the caleulation of pensions ¢osts and the allocation of costs

to accounting periods. Further, the actuarial valuation under US GAAP must
be carried out on an annual basis.

(b} Telecomrmunications capacity sales

Your Communications owns a series of telecommunications networks, Where
there is excess capacity it may sell this capacity to other telecommunications
companiss.

Under US GAAP capacily sales ars required to be accounted for as
operating leases unless title under the l2ase is transferred to the lessee.

Under UK GAAP the transfer of fille is only one of the factors taken into
account when determining the accounting treatment.

(¢) Infrastructure renewals costs

Under UK GAAP, expenditure ¢n infrastructure assets relating to increases

in capacity or enhancement of the network, and on maintaining the operating
capability of the network in accordance with defined standards of service,

Is treated as an addition to fixed assets. Under US GAAP, anly expenditure
relating to increases in capacity or enhancement of the network is capitalised.
This is then deprecialed in accordance with paragraph (d) below.

Under UK GAAP, the charge tc the profit and loss account for depreciation
reflects the planned level of expenditure for infrastructure renewals. The
charge is adjusted under US GAAP to reflect actual expenditure In the year,

(d) Depreciation of infrastructure assets

Under UK GAAP, the depreciation charge for infrastructure assets Is the
estimated level of annual expenditure required to maintain the operating
capability of the netwark which is based an the company's indapendantly
certified asset management plan, Under US GAAP, depreciation is charged
on infrastructure assets in equal annual instalments over a period of

100 years, being the estimated economic life under US GAAP.

(e} Provisions
Generally, provision accounting under UK GAAP is substantially the same
as under US GAAP.

Onerous contracts

Fellowing the adoption of Financial Reporting Standard 12 in 1998, the
onerous contract provision was restated under UK GAAP, as a prior pericd
adjustment, to charge the discount element as a financing cost for the pericd
1995 to 1998, Under US GAAP no adjustment would have been made for
the discount in this peried. The onerous contract provision was released

to the disposal account on the sals of the energy supply business in August
2001, see paragraph (h) opposite.
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Accounting for joint ventures

Under UK GAAP, an investor is required to account for its proportionate
share of net liabilities in a loss-making jeint venture, even where there is no
obligation to fund those liabllities. Where this is the case, an investor's share
of the nst liabilities of an investrmant is shown as a provision rathar than a
negative fixed asset. As described in note 13 the group recorded a provision
of £38.0 milion in 2002 to reflect its proportionate share of the net liabilities
of an investment in Argentina, Under US GAAP, an investar should
discontinue recording losses of an investment when the investment has been
reduced o zero, urless the invesior has an obligation or commitment 1o fund
those liabilities. As the group is not obligated or committed to funding the net
liabviiities of this investment, na such pravision has been recorded under US
GAAP.

(f) Capitalisation of interest

Under UK GAAP, the capitalisation of interest is not required. Under US
GAAP, interest is required to be capitalised on qualifying agssets during
the time required to prepare them for their intended use. The capitalised
interest should be amortised over the life of the asset.

(g} Goodwill

Under UK GAAP, goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1 April 1998 is treated
in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 10 and capitaiised and
amertised as it would be in accordance with US GAAP. Prior to that date, the
goodwill arlsing on acquisition was and remains written off against retained
earnings in the consalidated balance sheet in the year of acquisition. Under
US GAAP, goodwil! Is capitalised on the balance shest and amartised by
charges against income over its estimated useful fife, not to exceed 40 years.
For US GAAP, goodwill is amortised over periods varying between 5 and

40 years.

Under UK GAAF, the profit or loss on disposal of all or pant of a previously
acquired business is calculated after taking account of the gross amount
of any goodwilll previously sliminated directly against reservag or any
unamortised goodwill. Under US GAAR an adjustment to profit or loss on
disposal is required in raspact of goodwill previously amortised.

{h} Profit on disposal of energy supply business

Under UK GAAP, goadwill attributable tc the energy supply business of
£101.0 millien had been previcusly written off directly to reserves. On
disposal in August 2001 this geodwill was included in the profit and loss
account as & realised cost of dispesal. Under US GAAP this goodwlll was
capitalised and amertised and the net gocdwill of £89.2 million {after
charging amortisation of £11.8 million) was treated as a cost of disposal.

As described in paragraph (g) the onerous contract provision was treated
differently under US GAAP thar under UK GAAPR. Consequently, the provision
released on the disposal of the energy supply business was £36 million lower
under US GAAP than under UK GAAP.

(i} Fair value of derivative instruments

Under UK GAAP, the group does not recognise derivatives at fair value on
the balance sheet. Interest differentials on derivative instruments are charged
1o the profit and loss account as interest costs in the period to which they
relate. Changes in the market vaive of futures trading contracts are reflacted
in the profit and loss account in the period in which the change occurs.




Under US GAAP the group adopted SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivatives
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS 137 and 138,
SFAS 133 requires that all derivative instruments are recognised as assets or
liabilties on the balance sheet and measured at fair value, regardless of the
purpose or intent for holding them, Changes in the fair value of derivative
instruments are recognised periodically either in earnings or sharehclders’
equity {as a component of other comprehensive income), depending on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedge of changes in fair value or
cash flows. For derivatives designated as fair valug hedges, changes in fair
value of the hedged item and the derivative are recognised currrently in
earnings, For derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, fair value changes
of the sffective portion of the hedging instrument are recogniged in
accurnulated other comprehensive income on the balance sheet until the
hedged item is recognised in earnings. The ineffective portion of the fair value
changes are recognised in earnings immediately. The group has elected not
to designate any of its derivative instruments as hedges for US GAAP
accounting purposes. As a result, ali current year movements in fair value of
the group’s derivative instruments are recorded in eamnings.,

In accordance with the transition provisions of SFAS 133, the group
recorded, at 1 April 2001, a net-of-tax cumulative-effect reduction of £88.1
million in accumulated cther comprehensive income within shareholders’
squity to recognise at fair value all derivatives that were previously designated
as cash flow hedging instruments. Of the transition adijustment of £88.1
million in accumulated comprehensive income, £23.7 million has been
reclassified into earnings at 31 March 2002.

Additionally, a fair value adjustment increased debt by £163.0 million which
was offset by a corresponding amount to record derivatives previously
designated as fair value hedging instruments. The fair value adjustment to
debt is being amortised over the pericd of the debt in accordance with the
transitional rules.

Derivatives previcusly designated as cash flow and fair vaiue hedges are now
marked to market. Consequently, the group's earnings under US GAAP may
be more volatle because of the effect of derivative instruments.

() Currency translation adjustments

Under UK GAAP, currency translation adjustments on net bormowings

are taken to reserves to offset the foreign exchange exposure on foreign
investmants. Tha group's investment in I[EBA, the Argentinian electricity utility,
which had & carrying value of approximately £41.3 million prior to the
devaluation of the Argentine peso, has been extinguished by exchange
adjustments. An exchange adiustment of £7¢.3 million in respact of this
investment has been recorded in the statement of total recognised gains and
lnsses under UK GAAP. This has resultad in a provision of £38.0 millicn being
created on the balance shest In accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 2 1o reflect the group’s share of net fiabilities as discussed in
paragrapn {e).

Under US GAAP, the foreign currency translation adjustment on certain
barrowings would not be available for this offset unless they rneet the
stringent criteria specified under SFAS 133 for a designated hedge. Under
US GAAP this would be expensed through the income statement.

(k} Defetred taxes

Under UK GAAP, deferred taxes are treated in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 19. This allows the full provision for daferred tax on all
tirnirng differences to be discounted. Deferred tax is not recognised where the
camying amount of assets and liabilities of an acquisition are amended 1o its
fair value by way of a revaluation.

Under US GAAP, no discounting is allowed. Deferred tax also arises in
ralation to the tax effect of the ather US GAAP adjustments.

The 2001 and 2000 US GAAP adjustments for deferred taxes in notes 36(p)
and 36{(q)) have been restated as a result of the adoption of FRS 19 under
UK GAAP ag described in note 21.

{l} Ordinary dividends

Under UK GAAP, the proposed dividends on ordinary shares, as
recommended by the directors, are deducted from sharsholders’ equity and
shown as a liability in the balance sheet at the end of the period te which
they refate. Under LS GAAP, such dividends are only deducted from
shareholders' equity at the date of declaration of the dividend.

(m) Share compensation costs

The recognition of compensation expenses under UK GAAR in respect of
the group’s share option schemes is discussed in note 1. Under US GAAPR,
compensation cost has been recognised for all performance-related options
and certain options granted under the group’s UK Sharesave Scheme. For all
options that include performance-related criteria the cost is calculated as the
difference between the option price and the market price at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the Sharesave Scheme, the cost is calculated
ag the difference betwasn the option price and the market price at date of
grant. The cost is amortised over the period from the date the options are
granted to the date thay are first exercisable, that is, the vesting date,

At 31 March 2002, the group had a number of share-based compensation
plans, which are described in note 24 of the group’s financial staterments.
The group recognises compensation costs for US GAAP purposes in
accordance with the requirerments of APB Opinion Mo, 25.

(n) Earnings per share (EPS)

Under UK GAAP, basic EPS is based on the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. EPS is the profit In pence
attributable to each equity share, based on the profit for the financial year
attributable to ordinary sharehclders divided by the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year and ranking for dividend in respect
of the period. This method is alse used for basic EPS under US GAAR, In the
UK, it is acceptable to disclose an additional earnings per share provided
that it is calculated on a consistent basis over time. The adjustment to profit
and basic earnings per share has been made to eliminate the impact of
exceptional items, discontinued operations and goodwill amerlisation.

Under UK and US GAAR, diluted EPS must be disclosed. This is based on net
income and computed using the weighted average number of sharss in issue
during the year and the dilutive effect of all share options and ordinary share
equivalents. This method is similar to the treasury stock method used to
calculate diluted EPS for US GAAP purposes.

Farnings per shars computed in accordance with US GAAP has been based on the fellowing number of shares:

2002 2001 2000

million miflion rrillion

Weighted average number of shares under US GAAP - basic EPS 553.5 551.1 550.2
Common stock equivalents - dilutive share options 1.7 1.2 28
Waighted average number of shares under US GAAP - diluted EPS 555.2 552.3 553.0
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{0} New US Accounting Standards and pronouncements not yet
effective

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 (SFAS 141) (Business
Cornbinations) and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142
(SFAS 142} (Gooawill and Other Infangible Assets)

in July 2001, the FASE Issued Statement No. 141, Business Combinations,
and Statement No. 142, Goodwill and Other intangible Assets. Statement
141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all
business combinations initiated after 30 June 2001 as well as all purchase
method business combinations completed after 30 June 2001. Statement
141 alsp specifies criteria intangible assets acquired in a purchase method
business combination must meet to be recognised and reported apart from
goodwill, noting that any purchase price alfocable to an assembled workforce
may not be accounted for separately. Statement 142 will require that goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite useful fives no longer be amortised, bt
instead tested for impalrment at least annually in accordance with the
provisions of Statement 142. Statement 142 will also require that intangible
assets with definite useful lives be amortised over their respective estimated
usetul lives to their estimated residual values, and reviewed tor impairment in
accordance with SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets fo Be Disposed Of

Under Statemnent 141, any goodwill and any intangible asset determined to
have an Indefinite useful life that are acquired in a purchase business
combination completed after 30 June 2001 will not be amortised, but will
continue to be gvaluated for impairment in accordance with the appropriate
pre-Statement 142 accounting principles. Goodwil and intangible assets
acquired in business combinations compieted before 1 July 2001 will
caontinue to be amortised prior to the adopticn of Statement 142.

Staternent 141 requires, upon adoption of Staterment 142, the group to
evaluate its existing intangible assets and goodwill that were acquired in prior
purchase business combinations, and to make any necessary reclassifications
in order to conform with the new criteria in Statement 141 for ragognition
apart from goodwil. Upon adoption of Statement 142, the group will be
required 10 reassess the useful lives and residual values of all intangible
assets acquired in purchase business combinations, and make any
necessary amorisation period adjustments by the end of the first interim
period after adoption. In addition, to the extent an intangible asset is
identified as having an indefinfte usefud life, the group will be required to test
the intangible asset for impakment in agcordance with the provisions of
Staterment 142 within the first interim period. Any impairment loss will be
measured as of the date of adoption and recegnised as the cumulative effect
of a change in accounting principle in the first interim period.

In connection with the transitional goodwil impairment evaluation, Statement
142 will require the group 1o perform an assessment of whether there is an
indication that goodwili is impaired as of the date of adoption. Any
transitional impairment loss will be racognised as the cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle in the group's statement of earnings.

As of the date of adoption, the group expects to have unamortised goodwill
of approximately £979 milion and unamortised identifiable intangible assets
of approximately £9 milion which will he subject to the transition provisions of
Statements 141 and 142, Amoriisation expense related to goodwill was
£34.8 million and £31.6 million for the years ended 31 March 2002 and 2001
respectively.
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Because of the extensive effort needed 10 comply with adopting Statements
141 and 142, it is not practicable to estimate the impact of adopting these
Statemnents cn the group's financial statements at the date of this report,
including whether any transitional impairment losses wil be required to be
recognised as the cumulative effect ot a change in accounting principle.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 143 (SFAS 143)
{Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations)

FASB Statement No.143, Accouriting for Asset Retirement Obligations
{Statement No.143), requires an enterprise to record the fair value of an asset
retirement obligation as a lanility In the period in which it incurs a legal
obligation associated with the retiremnent of tangible long-lived assets that
result from the acquisition, construction, development and or normal use of
the assets. The enterprise also s to record a comresponding increase to the
carrying amount of the related long-lived asset (i.e., the associated asset
retirerment costs) and to depreciate that cost over the life of the asset. The
liability is changed at the end of each period to reflect the passage of time
li.e. accration axpenss) and changes in the estimated future cash flows
underlying the initial fair value measuremaent, Because of the extensive use of
estimates, most enterprises will record a gain ¢r loss when they setile the
obligation. Enterprises are required to adopt Statement No. 143 for fiscal
years beginning after 15 June 2002. The group has not evaluated the impact
on the consolidated financial statements of adopting this standard.

Staternent of Financial Accounting Standard's No, 144 (SFAS 144)
{Accounting For the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets)

FASB Staterment Na. 144, Accounting for the Impairment ar Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets, addresses financial accounting and reporting for the
impairment or disposal of long iived assets. While Statement No.144
supersedes FASB Staterment No.121, Accouniing for the Impairment of
Long-tived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of, it retains
many of the fundamental provisions of that Statement, Statement No. 144
also supersedes the accounting and reporting provisions of APB Opinion
No. 30, Reporting the Results of Operations-Reporting the Fifects OF
Disposal of a Sagment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and
infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions, for the disposal of a
segment and extends that reporting to a component of an entity that either
has been disposed of {by sale, abandonment, or in a distribution to owners)
or is classified as held for sale,

Staternent No. 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after 15 December
2001 and interim periods within those fiscal years. The group has not yet
datermined the impact, it any, the adoption of this standard will have on its
financial pasition or results of operations.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 145 {Rescission of FASB
Statement No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and
Technical Corrections).

in April 2002, the FASB issued Statement No. 145, “Rescission of FASS
Staterments No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASE Statement No. 13, and
Technical Corrections.” Statement No. 145 provides for the rescission of
savaral previously jssugd accounting standards, new accounting guidance for
the accounting for certain lease modifications and various technical
comections that are not substantive in nature to existing proncuncemnents,
Statement No. 145 will be adopted for accounting pericds beginning after

1 January 2003, except for the provisions relating to the amendment of
Staternent No. 13, which wil be adopted for transactions occurring
subsequent to 15 May 2002. Adopticn of Statement Ne. 145 is not expected
to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.




(p) Effect on net income of differences between UK and US GAAP

For the year ended 31 March

Restated Restated
200z 2001 2000
Note £m £m £m

Net income in accordance with UK GAAP

US GAAP adjustments:

2650 3462  367.0

— Pension costs

- Telecomriunicaiions capacity sales

3% 185 40 650)

36y BT @ -

- Infrastructure renewals costs 36(c) 24.5 21.0 24
- Depreciation cf infrastructure assets 36d) (22,0  (21.3)  (19.9)
- Share compensation costs 36{m} 04 14.8) -
~ Provisions and fair valug adjustments 36 - (16.0) 40

- Capitalisation: of interest

- Amortisa}ion of goodwill

88f) 479 440 463
sen G4 B4 08

36(g)  (26.7)  (27.8)  (20.2)

— Profit on disposal of business

- Deferred taxes

) - P42 -
360  (41.8)
urrency translation adjustment 36() (41.3) - -

369 (554) (116.4)  64.3

- Tex effect of US GAAP adiustments

36(k} {4.0) 7.4 6.0}

Net income in accotdance with LIS GAAP

150.2 1978 A18.4

Met income in accordance with US GAAP from:
Continuing operations.
Discantinued operations

1502 726 3728

- 125.2 43.6

Total

150.2 197.8 416.4

Net income per £1 ordinary share {pence) in accordance with US GAAP basic method from:

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

271 13.2 67.8

- 227 7.9

Total

6n) 27 35.9 0.7

Net income per £1 ordinary share {pence) in accordance with US GAAP diluted methed from:

Discontinued operations

271 13.1 67.4
- 22.7 7.9

Total

36y 273 35.8 753
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{g) Cumulative effect on share¢halders’ equity of differences between UK and US GAAP

Restated
2002 200n
At 3 March Note £m £m

US‘QA‘AP adjustments:

.24 25863 25975

- Pensions

- Infrastructure renewals costs
— Depreciation of infrastructure assets

%@ (04 (359
o) 7E 14
36(c) 83.2 ‘ 58.7
36()  (188.8) (166.8)

~ Shara compensation costs
~ Provisians for net liabilities of jcint ventures

Y
36(e) 380 -

~ Capitalisation and arncrtisation of interest
- Goodwill B -
- Fair value of derivative instruments

36() 4150 3765
36(g) 8978 9245
36()  (133.5)

- Deferred taxes B 36K (829.0) (773.6)
- Income taxes on US GAAP adjustments 3Bk 438}  (67.0)
- Dividends 3BH 1762 1720
Shareholders’ equity in accordance with US GAAP 29201 3,077.0

] Classification differences between UK and US GAAP

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Provisions for liabilities and charges undear UK GAAP include £16.8 million
(2001 - £18.5 milicn; 2000 ~ £44.1 million) which are due within one year and
which would be reclassified 1o current liabilties under US GAAP The remainder
of the provisions would be reclassified as long-term llabilities under US GAAP.

Pensions

The definition of current assets and liabilities differs under UK and US GAAP.
Lncler UK GAAP an amount of £36.9 million is included in prepayments and
accrued income under current deblors {see note 15} which would be treated
28 a fong ferm asset for US GAAR

Grants

Under UK GAAP, grants {other then capital contributions towards infrastructure
assets) are disclosed within deferred grants and contributions as creditors in
the balance sheet. Under US GAAP, these amounts would be set against
the asssts to which they relate, and £265.6 million (2001 — £249.0 million;
2000 - £228.2 milion) would ba reclassified from long-term liabllitles to
tangible fixed assets.

Exceptional items
Under UK GAAF, profits on disposal of businesses may be disclosed as
exceptional items, after operating profit,

Under US GAAF, all exceptional itemns, except for the gain on sale of
businesses, would have been reflected within operating profit. In 2002, a
profit of £nil {2001 — profit of £167.0 million; 2000 — profit of £nil) would have
peen included within discontinued operations.

Discontinued operations
Undar UK GAAP, discontinuied operations are presented within the financial
staterments by analysing the relevant line items.

US GAAP reguires that net income/loss, net of tax, for a discontinuad
operation be presented on a single line in the income statement and that the
net assets/liabilities of the discontinued operation be presented an a single
line in the balance sheet for all periods presented.

{s) Cash flows

Under UK GAAP, the group complies with Financial Reporting Standard 1
{Revised) (Cash Flow Statements) {(FRS 1), the objective and principles of
which are similar to those set out in Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 85 (Statement of Cash Flows) (SFAS 85). The principal
difference between the two standards is in respect of classification. Under
FRS 1 {Revised), the group presents its cash flows for {a) operating activities;
{b) returns on investments and servicing of finance; (c) taxation; (d) capital
expenditure and financial investment; (e) acquisitions and disposals; ()
dividends to ordinary shareholders; (g} management of liquid rescurces; and
{n) financing activities, SFAS 95 requires only three categories of cash flow
activity {g} operating; {b) investing; and {c) financing.

Cash flows arising from taxation and returns on investments and servicing

of finance under FRS 1 (Revised) would ke included as operating activities undler
SFAS 85; dividend payments would be included as a financing activity under
SBFAS 95 and cash flows from capital expenditure, long-term investments,
acquisitions and disposals would be included as investing activities under SFAS
95. In addition, under FRS 1 (Revised), cash tepresents cash at bank and in
hand, less bank cverdratts; cash equivalents (ie liquid rescurces) are not
included with cash, Movements of liquid resources are included under a
separate heading. Under US GAAP, cash and cash squivalents are not offset by
bank overdrafts repayable within 24 hours from the date of the advancs. Such
overdrafts are classified within financing activities under US GAAR,

Set out below is a summary consclidated statement of cash flows under
US GAAP:

2002 2001 200

£m £m £m

Net cash provided by operating activities 578.2 650.7 655.4
Net cash used ninvesting acthiies 0 (895.8) (378.3) (657.7)
Net cash used by financing activities (143) (251.3) (182.0)
'Eﬁec& of sxchange rals changés or cash 0.3 o 0.9) -~
Net {decreass)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {31.8) 20.2 134.3)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

507 305 1648

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

18.9 50.7 30.5
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Profit and loss accounts

Restated Restated Restated Restated
1998 1999 2000 20 2002
£m £m £m £ £m

Group turnover

2150 2,277 2356 1,608 1,791

Net operating costs

(1,603} (1,820) (1,895) (1,194} (1,266)

Group operating profit 547 657 661 504 525
Share of operating profits of joint ventures and asscciated undertakings 6 2 4 10 14
Profit on disposal of businesses 7 - - 191 -

Net interest payable and other similar chargeé

e 203 (208 (2200 {231)

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

398 456 459 485 308

Tax charge on profit on ordinary activities (68} (164) 192) {139) 41}
Profit on ordinary activities after texation %40 W2 oweT 36
Exceptional taxation — windfall tax (415) - - - -
e e, A5 o292 367 348 267
Minerity interest 2 - _ _ 2

(Los_s)!proﬁt for financial year
Dividends

73 292 367 348 265
229)  (243)  (249)  (255)  (261)

Retained {loss)/profit for the financial year

(302) 49 118 91 4

Fixed assets

5439 5913 6,302 6594 6,845

Net current liabilties

Creditors fallng due after more than

(1,431) (@91 (1,134) (628  (505)

(1,682) [2,376) (2,434) (3,093 (3478)

Provisions for liabilities and charges

(166) (304} (370) (282) (311)

Net assets

2,160 2,242 2,364 2,611 2,551

_ngs_e_[ves and rgtgined profits
Minority interest

1,179 1,192 1,195 1,209 1,227

982 1,051 1,169 1,388 1,300

6] ) - 14 15

Capital employed

2,160 2,242 2,364 2,611 2,551
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Key events for shareholders during the year

The company is holding its 2002 annual general meeting on Wednesday,
31 July 2002 at the Bridgewater Hall, Manchester. It will start at 11.00 am,
The notice calling the mesting and a full explanation of the reselutions to be
proposed at the meeting are set out In the lsafist sent to shareholders with
this report.

During the next year, the company will

- pay the 2002 final dividend on 1 Octeber 2002;

- announca the half-year results in December 2002,

- pay the 2002 interim dividend in February 2003;

- announce the preliminary full-year results in May 2003;

- pulish the annual report and accounts, the annual review and summary
financial staternent, and form 20-F in June 2003; and

~  hold the annual general meeting in Juiy 2003.

Keeping you in the picture

You can find more inforration about United Wiilities quickly and easily on the
United Utilities websits, As well as the annual report and accounts, the soctal
and environmental impact reports and other reparts, company
announcements are also pubiished on the website, including the interim and
preliminary results announcements and associated presentations.

" ) -
% www.unitedutilities.com

In acidition to these reports, the group also publishes in printed form a wide
tange of repards, leaflsts and factshests about aspects of its businesses. You
¢an get more information about them from lan Priestner, group director of
communications, at Dawson House, Great Sankey, Warrington WAS 3LW
{ielephone: 01925 237000, e-mail: ian.priestner@uuplc.co.uk),

American Depositary Receipt holders can get a copy of the annual report on
form 20-F, which is filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in the
US, from the depositary (see ‘Enquiring about the American fisting’ below).

COther shareholders can get a copy from Jane Gilmore, comgpliance manager,
at Dawson House, Great Sankey, Warrington WAS 3LW (telephone:
01925 237000; e-mall; jane.gilmore@uuplc.co.uk).

Coples of the separate regulatory acceounts for the year ended 31 March
2002 for the licensed water and electricity distribution businesses, which
have to be given to the water and energy regulators, are available free of
chargs. If you would lke copies, please contact Jane Gilmare.

Enquiring about your shareholding

If you want to ask, or need any information, about your sharsholding,
please contact the company’s registrar, Lloyds TSB Registrars, The
Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex BN99 6DA (teiephone: 0870 600 3971,
or textphone for shareholders with hearing difficulties: 0870 800 3850).

The registrar's website allows shareholders with on-iine internet access to
view details of their shareholdings, to vote at general meetings and to register
10 receive communications electronically. The service is secure - data
transferred to you is encrypted and you have a personal user ID and PIN;
free - as long as you have a computer and access to the internet; and easy
to use — you just need your user 1D and PIN o iog on.

To register for the service, please go to www.shareview.co.uk - you will nesd
your shareholder account number (which can be found on the proxy form
accompanying the notice of annual genaral meeting or your share certificate)
and you wil ba asked to select your own PIN. A user ID will then be posted
to you. You can alse find on this website mere details of the service and
practical help and extensive information on other share registration topics.

If you have received more than one copy of this annual report, you may have
mars than one account in your name on the register of members. To merge
your holdings, please write to the registrar giving details of the accounts
concerned and how you want them to be merged.

.

3 www.shareview.co.uk
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Communicating in alternative formats

If it would heln you to receive sharehaldar communications in an alternative
format — large print, braille or audio tape - please contact the registrar,
Lloyds TSB Registrars {see above), and give detalls of your name, address,
snareholder account numbber and your preferred alternative format.

Paying your dividends direct to your account

The company pays dividends direct to a shareholder’s bank or buiiding
society account through the BACS (Bankers’ Automated Clearing Service)
system, Tre berefit to shareholders is that the company can send tax
vouchers direct to them rather than to their bank or bullding society. If you
have not already arranged for your dividends to be paid direct to your bank
or building sociely account and you want 1o do 50, please contact the
company’s registrar, at the address above.

Dealing in United Utilities shares cost effectively

You can get details of the simple postal service for dealing in United Utilities
shares at an attraclive cormmission rate from NatWest Stockbrokers,
Corporate and Employee Services, 55 Mansell Street, London E1 8AN
{telephone: 020 7895 5029).

{/f‘ www.natweststockbrokers.co.uk

Helding your shares tax efficiently

The United Utilities 1SA {(a Maxi or Mini sharas-only individual savings
account), managed by Halifax Share Dealing Limited, offers a tax efficient
way of holding both United Utllities shares and alse other ISA sligible shares.
To get more information, please ring 0870 600 9966 quoting United Utilties
sharehoider.

{7 www.halifax.co.uk/sharedealing

¥
¥

Donating shares to the ShareGift scheme

Many shareholders can find themselves owning parcels of shares so small
that it would cost mere to sell them than they are worth. They may therefore
appear to be toa small to do anything with but may still bring a tax fiability on
dividends paid and unwanted documentation,

The ShareGift scheme, a ragistered charity administered by The Orr
Mackintosh Foundation, offers an alternative. Any shares donated to the
ShareGitt scheme are transferred into the name of The Orr Mackintosh
Foundation which aggregates them, sells them when pessible and donates
the procaeds to a growing fst of charilies.

if you would ke to participate in the ShareGift scheme or would like further
information about it, you can ring 020 7337 0501, or write to The Orr
Mackintosh Foundation, 24 Grosvenor Gardens, London SW1W 0DH,

or visit the scheme’s website,

+ www.sharegift.org

Enguiring about the American listing

United Utilities shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange in the

form of American depositary shares (ADS), evidenced by American depositary
receims tADRY and trade under the symbol UU. Each ADS represents two
shares. The Bank of New York is the depositary and its address for enquiries
is The Bank of New York, Shareholder Relations, PO Box 11258, Church
Strest Station, New York NY 10286-1258 {telephone: 1 (888} BNY-ADRS

{US toll free) and outsids the US, 908-769-9835).

Py
%'} www.adrbny.com

Avoiding unsolicited mail

The company is legally obliged to make its register of members available to
other organisations. Because of this, you may receive mail you have not asked
for. If you want to limit the amaount of personally addressed unsalicited mail
you receive, please write for information and an application form to the Mailing
Preference Service, Freepost 22, London W1E 7EZ or ring 08457 034599.

e .
&% www.mpsonline.org.uk




